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Chairman’s Statement

ERERE

On behalf of the Board, | am pleased to present the annual report of
the Group for the year ended 31 March 2017.

The 2017 Financial Year was a challenge year for Yee Hop since the
Listing of the shares of the Company on the Main Board of the Hong
Kong Exchange in December 2015. The slow progress in the funding
approval by the Legislative Council of the planned infrastructure
projects has adverse impact on the construction market in Hong
Kong. The sluggish market condition from late 2016 has continued
to the 2017 Financial Year. Accordingly, the financial results for the
2017 Financial Year has recorded a decrease in revenue and profits
for the 2017 Financial Year.

RESULT SUMMARY

During the 2017 Financial Year, the Group recorded a consolidated
revenue of approximately HK$498.3 million, being a decrease
of 29.3% from the last financial year. Gross Profit of the Group
amounted HK$78.5 million, a decrease of 54.8% from the 2016
Corresponding Year. Profit attributable to equity shareholders
amounted to HK$22.5 million representing a decrease of 76.1%
as compared to the last financial year. Earnings per share were
HK$0.05 for the 2017 Financial Year comparing with HK$0.23
for the 2016 Corresponding Year. The Group maintained healthy
financial position with net current assets of HK$203.1 million and
net cash position at the financial year ended.

Despite the challenges and difficulties, with the dedicated support of
our staff and customers, the Group has been successfully awarded
8 contracts with original contract sums of totaling HK$972.6 million
and the outstanding contract value (based on the original contract
value) as at 31 March 2017 amounted to approximately HK$1,205.0
million.

OUTLOOK

Though we are conservative optimistic to the long-term outlook
of the construction market in Hong Kong in view of the long term
development plan for the infrastructure projects as presented by
the Hong Kong Chief Executive in the 2017 Policy Address, we
remain concern in the medium to short-term. With the reduction of
the number of tenders available in the market and the fierce price
competition, we expect the recovery of the market will be slow and
long.
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Chairman’s Statement

EFERE

In view of the short-term outlook of the construction market, the
Group will broaden the revenue stream by explore other business
opportunities outside Hong Kong. In April 2017, the Group has
entered into a Memorandum of Understanding to explore the
opportunity of co-operation for the property development in the
United Kingdom. Details of the Memorandum of Understanding are
set out in the announcement of the Company dated 12 April 2017.
The Group is in the process to finalize the terms and conditions
of the proposed investment. It is believe that this investment, if
materialized, will broaden the revenue base of the Group.

APPRECIATION

I would like to this opportunity to express my heartfelt appreciation
to the board members, management team and staff for their
dedication and their valuable contributions.

| would also like to thank our customers, subcontractors and
suppliers, other business partners and, most importantly, our

Shareholders of their continue support to the Group for the past
years.

Jim Yin Kwan Jackin
Chairman

Hong Kong, 30 June 2017
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEERN W&k D

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group is an established contractor in Hong Kong and is
principally engaged in the provision of foundation works (including
the construction of mini-piles, rock-socketed steel H-piles and driven
steel H piles, and other civil works, including site formation works,
and road and pavement works) and tunneling works (including
pipe jacking, hand dig tunnel and cut-and-cover tunnel works). The
Group usually engages its own team of technical staff and direct
labour to perform on-site works, together with a broad range of
owned machineries and equipment.

During the 2017 Financial Year, the Group recorded revenue
of approximately HK$498.3 million (2016 Corresponding Year:
HK$704.4 million), a decrease of 29.3%. Revenue for the
foundation works and tunneling works for the 2017 Financial
Year were approximately HK$298.2 million and HK$200.1 million
(2016 Corresponding Year: HK$414.7 million and HK$289.7
million) respectively, representing a decrease of 28.1% and 30.9%
respectively.

During the 2017 Financial Year, the Group has been awarded 8
contracts with original contract sums of approximately HK$972.6
million of which 6 contracts for the foundation works and 2
contracts for the tunneling works in the sum of approximately
HK$889.6 million and HK$83.0 million respectively.

As at 31 March 2017, the Group had a total of 18 major contracts
on hands with the outstanding contract value (based on the original
contract value) amounted to approximately HK$1,205.0 million (as
at 31 March 2016: HK$761.2 million) to be completed.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENRR N

BUSINESS OUTLOOK

The growth of the construction market depends on the infrastructure
projects approved by the Hong Kong Government. As noted in the
2017 Policy Address delivered by the Hong Kong Chief Executive
in 2017, the Government is strongly committed to the long-term
development in public housing, subsidized sale flats and land supply.
For the next 5 years, it has planned to provide 94,500 housing units
of which 71,800 are public rental housing units and about 22,600
are subsidized sales flats. In addition, it will commence promptly the
planning and engineering study on the reclamations of about 200
and 60 hectares at Lung Kwu Tan and in Ma Liu Shui respectively.

The Group is conservative optimistic to the long-term outlook of
the construction market in Hong Kong in view of the development
plan for the infrastructure projects. As explained in the Interim
Report, the construction market has been significantly affected by
the filibustering in the Legislative Council to approve the funding for
infrastructure projects, which has reduced the number of tenders
available in the market and thus, increase the price competition
in the tendering of new contracts. It is expected that the sluggish
market situation of the construction market will continue for some
years.

Therefore, the Group is concerned on the short-term outlook of
the construction market, which will have significant impact on the
revenue and profits of the Group. The Group will explore other
business opportunities in different countries in order to broaden the
revenue stream of the Group.

As set out in the announcement of the Company dated 12 April
2017, the Group has entered into a Memorandum of Understanding
to explore the opportunity of co-operation to establish or co-invest
in a jointly owned company for investment and development of the
land and properties in the United Kingdom. It is in the process of
finalising the terms and conditions of this proposed investment. The
Directors believe that this investment, if materialized, will provide
the Group with an opportunity to diversify the business spectrum
and provide additional income stream to the Group.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENRR N

SAFETY AND ENVIRONMENTAL MANAGEMENT
The Group has placed strong emphasis on quality assurance system
and strong commitment to works’ quality, safety, occupational
health and environmental management are crucial in delivering
quality works to the customers on a timely basis.

The Group has implemented a stringent management system to
regulate its works’ quality, safety and environmental management
standards, which complies with international standards. The Group
has met the requirements of ISO 9001, ISO 14001, I1SO 50001
and OHSAS 18001 accreditation for our quality management
system, environmental management system, energy management
system and occupational safety and health management system
respectively.

For the past years, the Group has maintained an accident rate (on
the basis of per 1,000 workers) at the construction sites lower
than the industry average. For the calendar year 2016, the Group
recorded an accident rate of 2.4 per 1,000 workers and no fatal
injury at the construction sites of the Group.

During the 2017 Financial Year, the Group received the following
awards from Government departments, public utility companies
and industry organizations on recognizing our Group's effort on
promoting and maintaining our site safety:

° Merit in Non-Public Works Sites — New Works & RMAA Works
CCSA by 22nd Development Bureau Considerate Contractors
Site Award Scheme

e Best Subcontractor Award by Chun Wo Construction &
Engineering Co., Ltd

e Certificate of Appreciation of Excellent Safety Management by
Hong Kong Electric Co., Ltd. Safety Award 2016

e Subcontractor with Distinguished Performance 2016
(Environmental Protection) by Hip Hing Construction Company
Limited
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENRR N

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

During the 2017 Financial Year, the Group recorded a consolidated
revenue of approximately HK$498.3 million, a decrease of
approximately 29.3% comparing with the revenue of approximately
HK$704.4 million for the 2016 Corresponding Year. As explained
in the Interim Report, the decrease in revenue was primarily due to
the continued weakening of the construction market and the keen
competition as a result of the slow progress in the funding approval
by the Legislative Council.

Revenue from the tunneling works segment for the 2017 Financial
Year amounted to approximately HK$200.1 million representing a
decrease of approximately 30.9% from the 2016 Corresponding
Year. Revenue from the foundation and other civil works segment
decreased from approximately HK$414.7 million for the 2016
Corresponding Year to approximately HK$298.2 million for the 2017
Financial Year, a decrease of approximately 28.1%.

Gross profit and gross profit margin

The gross profit of the Group decreased from approximately
HK$173.5 million for the 2016 Corresponding Year to approximately
HK$78.5 million for the 2017 Financial Year, representing a decrease
of approximately 54.8%.

The overall gross profit margin decreased from approximately 24.6%
for the 2016 Corresponding Year to approximately 15.8% for the
2017 Financial Year.

Gross profit in relation to tunneling works decreased by
approximately HK$10.9 million from approximately HK$54.5 million
for the 2016 Corresponding Year to approximately HK$43.6 million
for the 2017 Financial Year and the gross profit margin for the
tunneling works segment increased from approximately 18.8% for
the 2016 Corresponding Year to approximately 21.8% for the 2017
Financial Year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENRR N

Gross profit in relation to foundation and other civil works decreased
by approximately HK$84.3 million from approximately HK$119.0
million for 2016 Corresponding Year to approximately HK$34.7
million for the 2017 Financial Year. The gross profit margin in
relation to the foundation and other civil works segment was 11.7%
for the 2017 Financial Year, compared with 28.7% for the 2016
Corresponding Year.

The decrease in gross profit and gross profit margin was mainly
attributable to the decrease in revenue and price competition as
explained above.

Other income and gain

Other income and gain of the Group decreased from approximately
HK$3.4 million for the 2016 Corresponding Year to approximately
HK$2.5 million for the 2017 Financial Year, representing a decrease
of approximately 26.5%. Such decrease was mainly attributable
to the combined effect of (i) absence of rental income from plant
and equipment of HK$0.9 million; (ii) increase in the sale of scrap
materials of HK$0.6 million; and (iii) reversal for provision on long
service payment of HK$0.3 million.

Administrative expenses

Administrative expenses decreased from approximately HK$62.2
million for the 2016 Corresponding Year to approximately HK$52.5
million for the 2017 Financial Year, a decrease of approximately
15.6%. The decrease was mainly attributable to the absence of one-
off listing expenses of HK$5.7 million in the 2017 Financial Year and
the decrease in staff costs (including Directors’ emoluments) etc.

Total administrative staff costs including Directors’ emoluments of
the Group decreased to approximately HK$26.6 million for the 2017
Financial Year compared to approximately HK$28.4 million for the
2016 Corresponding Year mainly due to the decrease in bonus for
the office staff and Directors.

Finance costs

Finance cost of the Group for the 2017 Financial Year was
approximately HK$1.6 million, in line with that for the 2016
Corresponding Year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENRR N

Income tax expenses

Income tax expenses decreased by approximately HK$14.5 million
from approximately HK$18.8 million for the 2016 Corresponding
Year to approximately HK$4.3 million for the 2017 Financial Year as
a result of the decrease in operating profit.

Profit and total comprehensive income

The consolidated profit and total comprehensive income of the
Group amounted to approximately HK$22.5 million for the 2017
Financial Year as compared to approximately HK$94.3 million for
the 2016 Corresponding Year, a decrease of 76.1%.

Return on total assets for the 2017 Financial Year was reduced to
6.8%, from 24.7% for the 2016 Corresponding Year. Return on
equity for the 2017 Financial Year was 9.1% as compared to 42.0%
for the 2016 Corresponding Year. The decrease was due to the
decrease in profits attributable to Shareholders.

Capital expenditure

The Group incurred capital expenditure, primarily on plant and
equipment and motor vehicles, of HK$14.2 million for the 2017
Financial Year, (2016 Corresponding Year: HK$17.8 million) which
was financed by internal resources and finance lease.

Liquidity and financial resources

As at 31 March 2017, the Group had bank balances and cash
and pledged bank deposits of approximately HK$75.3 million and
HK$2.0 million respectively (as at 31 March 2016: approximately
HK$132.6 million and HK$2.0 million respectively).

As at 31 March 2017, the Group had bank borrowing and
obligations under finance lease totaling approximately HK$18.6
million (as at 31 March 2016: approximately HK$29.3 million) out
of which approximately HK$13.1 million (as at 31 March 2016:
approximately HK$16.4 million) were classified under current
liabilities.

As at 31 March 2017, the Group had net current assets
of approximately HK$203.1 million (as at 31 March 2016:
approximately HK$174.0 million).

The Group's current ratio (which is calculated on the basis of current
assets over current liabilities) as at 31 March 2017 and 31 March
2016 was approximately 3.8 times and 2.3 times respectively. The
gearing ratio (which is calculated on the basis of total debt over total
equity. Total debt includes bank borrowing and obligations under
finance leases) of the Group as at 31 March 2017 and 31 March
2016 was approximately 7.5% and 13.1% respectively.

Annual Report 2016/17 Ff

FrisBipx
TS SZ H2016F R EIMAEEK 1888
BILR LB 145BE TR 2017F K
FEMNBELIIEEL AR EE R
M PTER ©

AR EE N RAE
REBR2017FHBFEENGFE BN RE
HUEARREA BB 22 5B 87T * m2016
FRPAN AEEIMIEETT  WIEES
76.1% ©

2017 F B FEMNEELEERER2016
FRHN24.7% B E6.8% ° &A@ 7R R 7
2017 BFEE 59.1% » M2016FFEAF]
542.0% © JFUIE Y B P B 3R FE AL Vi AR
FIrEx »

=N
REER2017FHRFEEE RS NME
BARTEEENERMS BEK 1428
B (2016FFHY - BE178HEL) * M
ANBEREMERELE -

REEESRIBER

MR2017%3H318 - AEEMRITEHR LR
AR BEBRITERD RO ABET5.3
BEILAREK208ET(7R2016F3 A31
H: DRl ABE1326 88T EE2.08

e —

BJ) °

MR201793A318  AEEMRITEE LB
EHEETA KLY EE18.6EEL(FR2016
F3A31H : LB 293[ET) * b4
EE131AET (2016538318 © 4958
¥16 48 BIL)ENEERBAME -

MR20179F3 8318 » REENRBEEFE
#AEE203.188L(R20165F3A318 -
L1 T74.0BEBT) ©

ANEER20179F3A318 K201653H31H
MRBLE(RRBEERARBAEMNE
HEAE) D BIHA38E/R2.3ME - REBM
201743 A31H K2016F3 A31BEHMELRE
B2 (b TR E TS AR R A s B R &
EEE - EHAEAERTEERMENR
EEE)DAIAET 5% X13.1%

1"



12

Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENRR N

Capital commitments

As at 31 March 2017, the Group’s capital commitments relating
to the purchase of machinery and equipment was approximately
HK$5.0 million (as at 31 March 2016: nil).

Pledge of assets

As at 31 March 2017, the Group has pledged to banks and other
financial institutions of plant and equipment, other receivable and
bank deposits of approximately in total HK$30.6 million (31 March
2016: HK$47.4 million) to secure the banking and finance lease
facilities granted to the Group.

Significant investments
Save as disclosed, the Group did not hold any significant investments
during the 2017 Financial Year.

Segmental information
Details of segmental information are set out in the note 8 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Material acquisition and disposal of subsidiaries and
associates

During the 2017 Financial Year, the Group did not have any material
acquisition and disposal of subsidiaries and associates.

Foreign exchange risk management

The Group is not exposed to significant foreign exchange risk as the
business operations of the Group were transacted in Hong Kong
dollar. The revenue, expenses, monetary assets and liabilities of the
Group are mainly denominated in Hong Kong dollar (which is the
presentation currency of the financial information), same as the
functional currency of the Group.

For the 2017 Financial Year, there was no significant exposure to the
foreign currency rate fluctuations and the Group did not maintain
any hedging policy against foreign currency risk. The management
will consider hedging significant currency exposure should the need
arise.
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Contingent liabilities

As at 31 March 2017, the Group had provided guarantees of
approximately HK$96.7 million (31 March 2016: HK$69.6 million) in
respect of performance bonds in favour of its clients.

Employees and remuneration policies

As at 31 March 2017, the Group has 362 employees (as at 31
March 2016: 300). The remuneration package of the Group for
its employees includes salary, bonuses, other cash subsidies and
allowances. In general, employee salaries are determined based on
each employee’s qualifications, experience and capability and the
market remuneration rate. The Group has an annual review system
to assess the performance of our employees, which forms the
basis with respect to salary adjustments, bonuses and promotions.
Some in-house site staff were employed as daily workers and their
remuneration package includes salary and overtime allowances.
The employee remuneration expense and Directors’ emoluments
(including salaries, other benefits and retirement benefit costs)
amounted to approximately HK$141.1 million (2016 Corresponding
Year: HK$149.1 million) for the 2017 Financial Year.

DIVIDENDS

No interim dividends was paid by the Group during the 2017
Financial Year (2016 Corresponding Year: HK$127.2 million).

The Board does not recommend a payment of final dividend to the

Shareholders for the 2017 Financial Year (2016 Corresponding Year:
Nil).
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USE OF PROCEEDS

The Shares were listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
on 18 December 2015. The net proceeds from the Shares Offer
after deducting underwriting fees, commissions and other expenses
in connection with the Listing (the “Net Proceeds”) amounted to
approximately HK$104.3 million.

The Group intends to apply the Net Proceeds as set out in the
section headed “Future Plan and Use of Proceeds” in the Prospectus
and will review the use of proceeds periodically in view of the
market situation. As at 31 March 2017, the Net Proceeds have been
applied as follows:

Planned Use of Net Proceeds

SBIERRREAR

B RIERAE

AT A20159F12 B 18 B EBE X Fr =4 b
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IR DA AEE10438ETT °

REEBBBEBRER] KRR E RATER
THF & | — &1 P8k e A P 1S BOEDF R %
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R -
Net
Proceeds Balance
utilized unutilized
2EAME
MEFE KREBAGH
%  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BAETT BETT BB

e to expand capacity on o FYEVETTH AL ST AL
foundation business and BB R BB -
purchase new machineries AR E 4 R KR F+
and vehicles to improve T1ERE
operation efficiency and
enhance the working

capacity 60.2% 62,766 6,092 56,674
e to expand capacity on o REIETRR B TEER

tunneling business and NMESE A - DAIRF

purchase new machineries T1EgE

to enhance working

capacity 29.1% 30,340 - 30,340
e to strengthen established o AEIEINEERAR - U

position in the industry by ZENENC B

increasing the management (v

staff 8.0% 8,341 - 8,341
e general working capital of o REREEM—HREE

the Group =k 2.7% 2,815 2,815 -
Total #Et 100.0% 104,262 8,907 95,355

As at 31 March 2017 and up to the date of this report, the
unutilized Net Proceeds were deposited in the Group's bank
accounts in Hong Kong.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board and senior management of the Company commit to
achieve a high standard of corporate governance, to formulate good
corporate governance practice for improvement of accountability
and transparency in operations, and to strengthen the internal
control and risk management systems from time to time so as
to ensure to protect the rights of the shareholders and enhance
shareholder value.

The Company has adopted the code provisions set out in the
Corporate Governance Code under Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules.
The Company has complied with the code provision of the CG Code
during the 2017 Financial Year (the “CG Reporting Period”).

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in Appendix
10 of the Listing Rules. The Company has made specific enquiries
with all Directors and all Directors confirmed that they have
complied with the standards required by the Model Code during the
CG Reporting Period.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Overall Accountability

The Board is accountable to the Shareholders and in discharging its
corporate accountability. The Directors, individually and collectively,
must act in good faith in the best interests of the Company and the
Shareholders and fulfill their fiduciary duties by applying the required
level of skills, care and diligence to a standard in accordance with
the statutory requirements.

Board Responsibilities
The Board is responsible for formulating group policies and business
directions, and monitoring internal controls and performances.

Composition of the Board

As at 31 March 2017, the Board comprises seven members including
four Executive Directors and three Independent Non-executive
Directors.

The current Board members are:

Name Present position
Chairman of the Board
Vice Chairman

Chief Executive Officer
Executive Director

Mr. JIM Yin Kwan Jackin

Mr. CHUI Mo Ming

Mr. YAN Chi Tat

Mr. LEUNG Hung Kwong Derrick
Mr. LEE Luk Shiu

Mr. YU Hon Kwan

Mr. WONG Chi Keung Johnny
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The composition of the Board has a balance and diverse skill,
experience and professional knowledge in construction business, as
well as finance, accounting and legal expertise appropriate for the
requirements of the business of the Group.

The biographies details of the Directors are set out in the section
headed “Profiles of Directors and Senior Management” in this
annual report. There is no family relationship among the Directors.

As permitted under the Articles, the Company has arranged
Directors and Officers Liability Insurance in respect of any legal
actions which may be taken against Directors and management in
execution and discharge of their duties or in relation thereto.

During the CG Reporting Period, the Board at all times met the
requirement of Rules 3.10(1) and (2) and 3.10A of the Listing Rules
relating to the appointment of at least three Independent Non-
executive Directors representing one-third of the Board.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The Board is headed by the Chairman Mr. Jim Yin Kwan Jackin, with
the assistance of the Vice-chairman, Mr. Chui Mo Ming. The roles of
the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer, Mr. Yan Chi Tat are
segregated and not exercised by the same individual.

The Chairman is responsible for the leadership and effective running
of the Board and ensuring that all material issues are discussed by
the Board in a timely and constructive manner. The Chief Executive
Officer is responsible for the management of the Group’s business
and the implementation of the approved strategies of the Group. In
addition, each Executive Director is responsible for the management
of the different functions of the business of the Group.

With the support of the Company Secretary, the Chairman ensures
all the Directors are properly briefed on issues arising at Board
meetings and be provided with adequate information in a timely
manner.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established the Audit Committee, the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee for overseeing specific
aspects of the Company’s affair under its defined scope of duties
and term of reference. The terms of reference of each of the Board
Committees are available on the websites of the Company and the
Stock Exchange. Details of each committee are discussed below.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established the Audit Committee pursuant to a
resolution of the Directors passed on 25 November 2015 with
written terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code. The
primary duties of the Audit Committee are, among other things,
to review and supervise the financial reporting process and internal
control and risk management systems of the Group.

As at 31 March 2017, the Audit Committee consists of three
members who are the Independent Non-executive Directors, namely
Mr. Lee Luk Shiu, Mr. Yu Hon Kwan and Mr. Wong Chi Keung
Johnny. The Chairman of the Audit Committee is Mr. Lee Luk Shiu.

During the CG Reporting Period, the Audit Committee had held 4
meetings in relation to, among others, the following matters:

e the annual and interim financial statements and reports
together with related results announcements, including the
impact of the changes in accounting policies and practice,
major judgement areas and significant adjustments resulting
from audit etc;

e the adequacy and effectiveness of the financial reporting
systems, internal control and risk management systems of the
Group;

e the independence of the external auditors and the re-
appointment of the external auditors;

e the scope of the audit and the remuneration and terms of
engagement of external auditors;

The members of Audit Committee have a private meeting the
auditors, without the presence of the management, to discuss

matters raised by the external auditors.

All the members of Audit Committee have attended all the meetings
except Mr. Yu was absent from one meeting.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company established the Remuneration Committee pursuant
to a resolution of the Directors passed on 25 November 2015 with
written terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code. The
primary duties of the Remuneration Committee are, among other
things, to review and to determine the terms of remuneration
packages, bonuses and other compensation payable to the Directors
and senior management.

As at 31 March 2017, the Remuneration Committee consists of four
members, namely Mr. Yu Hon Kwan, Mr. Jim Yin Kwan Jackin, Mr.
Wong Chi Keung Johnny and Mr. Lee Luk Shiu. The Chairman of the
Remuneration Committee is Mr. Yu Hon Kwan.

During the CG Reporting Period, the Remuneration Committee
has held one meeting during the CG Reporting Period, which
was attended by all its members except Mr. Yu. The major work
performed by the Remuneration Committee included the review
of the remuneration of the Directors and senior management with
reference to the remuneration level of comparable companies,
responsibilities, performance and contributions of Directors and
senior management. No director is allowed to take part in any
discussion about his own remuneration.

Details of the remuneration paid to Directors and the five highest
paid employees are set out in notes 13 and 14 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Details of remuneration of the members of senior management by
band for the 2017 Financial Year are set out below:

Remuneration band
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HK$500,000 to HK$1,000,000

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company established the Nomination Committee pursuant
to a resolution of the Directors passed on 25 November 2015
with written terms of reference in compliance with the CG
Code. The primary function of the Nomination Committee is to
make recommendations to the Board on the appointment or
re-appointment of Directors and the management of the Board
succession. It also oversees the diversity policy of the Group.
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As at 31 March 2017, the Nomination Committee consists of four
members, namely Mr. Yu Hon Kwan, Mr. Jim Yin Kwan Jackin, Mr.
Wong Chi Keung Johnny and Mr. Lee Luk Shiu. The Chairman of the
Nomination Committee is Mr. Yu Hon Kwan.

The Board recognises the benefits of diversity of the Board members.
The Board will consider a number of factors in assessing the
composition of the Board, including but not limited to educational
background, professional qualifications, skill, industry experience,
age, gender and ethnic origin, subject to the requirement of the
Group and relevant provisions of the applicable laws. No restrictions,
like age, gender, and ethnic origin, will be set for the selection of
Board members. The Company will ensure that the Board has a
balance of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives appropriate
to the needs of the business of the Group.

During the CG Reporting Period, the Nomination Committee has
held one meeting which was attended by all its members except
Mr. Yu. The major work performed by the Nomination Committee
included the assessing the independence of the Independent Non-
executive Directors, reviewing the rotation of the Directors for the
re-election at the forth coming AGM and reviewing the composition,
the size and the diversity of the Board in accordance with the board
diversity policy adopted by the Company.

Pursuant to the CG Code, a separate ordinary resolution will be
proposed at the AGM for Shareholders to consider and approve the
re-election of of the retiring Directors.

BOARD MEETINGS

The Company generally convenes four regular Board meetings per
year or more meetings when necessary. During the CG Reporting
Period, four regular Board meetings were held, inter alia, to consider
and approve the matters recommended by the Board Committees,
including the interim report and annual report, to review the
dividend policy and to review and discuss the financial operation
of the Group. All Directors, other than Mr. Lee and Mr. Yu, have
attended all the Board meetings. Each of Mr. Lee and Mr. Yu was
absent for one meeting.

Notices of Board meeting will be served to all the Directors at least
14 days before the meeting. Notices and agenda of the Board
meeting are prepared by the Company Secretary as delegated by
the Chairman. All the Directors are given opportunity to include any
matters which they believe to be appropriate in the agenda of the
Board meetings.
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Agenda and relevant information of Board meeting with adequate
background information and supporting analysis are made available
to the Directors at least 3 days before the intended date of the
Board meeting. All the Directors are given separate and independent
access to the Company’s senior management for further information
and enquiries. The Company Secretary and senior management
will attend all the meetings of the Board and Board Committees to
advise on corporate governance, statutory compliance and financial
matters.

Any material matters that would have conflict of interest between
the directors/substantial shareholders and the Company will be dealt
with in the Board meeting. Pursuant to the Articles, a Director is not
entitled to vote on (nor is counted in the quorum) any resolution of
the Board in respect of any contract or arrangement or any other
proposal whatsoever in which he or any of his associates (including
any person who would be deemed to be an “associate” of the
Directors under the Listing Rules) has any material interest, except in
certain special circumstances. The Chairman of the Board meeting is
required to ensure that each Director is aware of such requirement
at the commencement of each Board meeting and declaration of
interest is properly made in the Board meeting where conflicts of
interest arise.

Directors have access to advices and services of the Company
Secretary and key officers of the Company in relation to the
Board procedures. Draft minutes of the Board/Board Committee
meetings recorded in sufficient details, the matters considered by
participants of such meetings and decisions reached are forwarded
to participants for comments within a reasonable time after the
meetings and final versions of minutes of Board meetings and
meetings of Board Committee are kept by the Company Secretary,
which are open for inspection by any Directors at any reasonable
time on reasonable notice.

Board members are provided with complete, adequate and timely
information to allow the Directors to fulfill their duties properly.
Directors may seek independent professional advice at the
Company'’s expense, if necessary, with the approval of the Board.

During the CG Reporting Period, the Chairman has held a private
meeting with the INEDs without the presence of other Executive
Directors.
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DIRECTORS’ TRAINING AND PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT

All Directors are encouraged to keep abreast of their responsibilities
as a Director and of the conduct, business activities and development
of the Company. The Company from time to time updates the
Directors on the latest regulatory and governance developments.

Directors are encouraged to participate in professional development
courses and seminars to develop and refresh their knowledge
and skills relating to the roles, functions and duties of a Director
of a listed company. Directors are regularly updated on the latest
development on the Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory
requirements to ensure their contributions to the Board remains
informed and relevant.

All the Directors have confirmed they had participated in continuous
professional developments during the CG Reporting Period as
required under the CG Code.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDITING

The Board acknowledges its responsibility in preparing the Group'’s
consolidated financial statements for each financial year which give
a true and fair view of the Group’s state of affairs, results and cash
flows and in accordance with the relevant accounting standards and
principles and the disclosure requirements under applicable laws and
regulations in Hong Kong.

In preparing the financial statements for the year ended 31
March 2017, the generally accepted accounting principles in
Hong Kong, Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and Hong
Kong Accounting Standards are adopted, with consistent use of
appropriate accounting policies, for making reasonable and prudent
judgments and estimates. The financial statements for the year
ended 31 March 2017 were prepared on a going concern basis.
The reporting responsibilities of the auditors are set out in the
Independent Auditors’ Report in this annual report.
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INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK MANAGEMENT
SYSTEMS

The Board is responsible for maintaining sound and effective
internal control and risk management systems and for reviewing
their effectiveness, particularly in respect of controls on financial,
operational, compliance and risk management, to safeguard
shareholders’ investment and the Group’s assets.

The internal control and risk management systems are designed to
provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance. The systems aim
to eliminate, or otherwise manage, risks of failure in achieving the
Company’s objectives.

The Company does not establish an internal audit function. The
Group has engaged external internal control consultant to review
various aspects of the internal control and risk management
systems of the Group. The Board, through the Audit Committee,
has reviewed the result of the work of the external internal control
consultant in relation to the effectiveness of the internal control and
risk management systems of the Group, including the adequacy of
resources, qualifications and experience of staff of the Company’s
accounting and financial reporting function. The Audit Committee
oversees the internal control and risk management systems of the
Group and communicates any material issues to the Board.

Based on the result of the reviews as mentioned above, it is
considered that proper internal control and risk management
systems are in place and implemented effectively.

The Group has implemented the management and quality assurance
standards in accordance with the standards of International
Organisation for Standardisation in respect of 1ISO 9001 (quality
management systems), ISO 14001 (environmental management
system) and ISO 50001 (energy management system). In addition,
the Group has implemented the occupational health and safety
management system in accordance with the requirements of OHSAS
18001 of Occupational Health and Safety Assessment Specification.
The Group has met the requirements of the annual review
conducted by the external consultants.

The Group has engaged Registered Safety Auditors to conduct
independent safety and health audit in relation to the effectiveness,
efficiency and reliability of safety and health management systems
in accordance with the requirements under the Code of Practice on
Safety Management for various construction sites during the CG
Reporting Period. Improvements had been implemented according
to the recommendations of the Registered Safety Auditors.
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DEED OF NON-COMPETITION

In order to avoid any future competition between the Group and
the Controlling Shareholders, each of the Controlling Shareholders
has executed a deed of non-competition dated 25 November 2015
(the "Deed of Non-Competition”) in favour of the Company.
Pursuant to the terms of the Deed of Non-Competition, each of
the Controlling Shareholders has undertaken, among others, in
favour of the Company that he/it will not and will procure his/its
close associates not to engage in any business which may be in
competition with the business carried on by the Group from time to
time.

AUDITORS' REMUNERATION

The remuneration paid or payable to SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited
in respect of the audit services and non-audit services for the year
ended 31 March 2017 are as follows:

Nature of Services

T ERE

Bl B AE BRI IGARE 2 BT
BE O OSIEBRBREUAAT AZZARY
HEIA2015F11 25BN THEZE ([T
BMBRE])  BEIBFREBENER &
TR B mA R R EE (AP ERE)  ®
BrIEUEEFEZRTRHEATSNE]
BEERAEBMA R ETHNERBABRFNT
%75 -

B &

HZE2017F3 831 B IEFEREXRE R IE
FBZRB DT HETERF R (BB 25T
EMEFMBRARMMSNT

Fee paid/payables

R E e ERER
HK$'000
BT T
Audit services EZRE
- consolidated financial statements of the  —ZAREBE2017FHBREE
Group for the 2017 Financial Year fre Bk 600
Non-audit services HEZIRTE
— review Internal control and risk — NEBESHE K B\ ke B IR = B AR 7%
management services 110
— tax representative services —BERIB AR 44

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Wu Tai Cheung, the Company Secretary of the Company, is
the primary contact person of the Board for all matters relating to
corporate governance and board procedures. All Directors have
access to the Company Secretary to ensure that Board procedures
and all applicable laws, rules and regulations are followed. During
the CG Reporting Period, he had taken relevant professional
trainings as required under Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules. The details
of the biographical of the Company Secretary are set out on page
30 of this annual report.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTORS

The Company believes that effective communication with
Shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and
investors’ understanding of the Group’s business performance
and strategies. The Group also recognises the importance of
transparency and timely disclosure of corporate information, which
enables Shareholders and investors to make appropriate investment
decisions.

The members of the Board and Board committees and the external
auditor will be present to answer Shareholders’ questions in
the annual general meetings of the Company. Circulars will be
distributed to all Shareholders before the AGM and any extraordinary
general meetings in accordance with the timeline requirement as
laid down in the Listing Rules and the Articles of the Company. All
the resolutions proposed to be approved at the general meetings
will be taken by poll and poll voting results will be published on the
websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company after the relevant
general meetings.

As a channel to promote effective communication, the Group
maintains a website where information on the Company’s
announcements, financial information and other information
are posted. Shareholders and investors may write directly to the
Company at its principal place of business in Hong Kong with any
enquiries.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

1) Procedures for Shareholders to convene an
extraordinary general meeting (“"EGM")
Pursuant to the Articles 64 of the Articles of the Company,
an extraordinary general meeting can be convened on the
requisition of one or more Shareholders holding, at the date
of deposit of the requisition, not less than one tenth (10%) of
the paid up capital of the Company having the right of voting
at general meetings. Such requisition shall be made in writing
to the Board or the Company Secretary of the Company for
the purpose of requiring an extraordinary general meeting
to be called by the Board for the transaction of any business
specified in such requisition. Such meeting shall be held within
2 months after the deposit of such requisition. If within 21 days
of such deposit, the Board fails to proceed to convene such
meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so in
the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the
requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.
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2)

3)

Procedures for putting forward proposals at
Shareholders’ meeting

There are no provisions in the Articles of the Company or
the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands for Shareholders
to move new resolutions at general meetings. Shareholders
who wish to move a resolution may request the Company to
convene a general meeting in accordance with the procedures
set out in the preceding paragraph.

Shareholders’ enquiries to the Board

Shareholders may send their enquiries and concerns together
with their names and contact information to the Board by
addressing them to the head office in Hong Kong at Units
1104-1106, Nan Fung Commercial Center, 19 Lam Lok Street,
Kowloon Bay, Kowloon, Hong Kong by post or email to
info@yee-hop.com.hk for the attention of the Chairman of the
Board. The Board will reply the enquiries and concerns as soon
as possible.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

The Company adopted an amended and restated memorandum
and articles of association of the Company (the "Constitutional
Documents”) on 25 November 2015 and effective upon the Listing.
A copy of the Company's updated Constitutional Documents is
available on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

During the CG Reporting Period, there is no change to the
Constitutional Documents.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Jim Yin Kwan Jackin (&#&8f), aged 55, an Executive Director
and the Chairman of the Board, a member of both the Nomination
Committee and Remuneration Committee of the Company. Mr. Jim
is one of the founders of the Group. He is also a Director of all the
subsidiaries of the Group.

Mr. Jim has over 30 years of experience in the engineering and
construction industry. Mr. Jim is responsible for formulating
corporate strategies and planning the business development of
the Group. Mr. Jim graduated ‘from the University of Reading with
a Bachelor’s degree of Science in Quantity Surveying and holds a
Master’s degree of Business Administration in Management from
the Brighton University.

Mr. Chui Mo Ming (#XiX B3), aged 64, an Executive Director and
the Vice-chairman of the Board. Mr. Chui is one of the founders of
the Group. He is also a Director of all the subsidiaries of the Group.

Mr. Chui has over 44 years of experience in the engineering and
construction industry. Mr. Chui is responsible for the formulating the
corporate strategies of the Group. Mr. Chui has been a construction
supervisor member of the Hong Kong Institute of Construction
Managers since August 2003.

Mr. Yan Chi Tat (B7&3£), aged 50, an Executive Director and the
Chief Executive Officer of the Group. Mr. Yan joined the Group in
October 2010. He is also the Director of Yee Hop Engineering.

Mr. Yan has over 24 years of experience in the engineering and
construction industry. Mr. Yan is responsible for formulating
corporate and business strategies and operations of the Group. Mr.
Yan graduated from the South Bank University with a Bachelor’s
degree of Science in Quantity Surveying. He is an associate of The
Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors and a professional associate of
The Royal Institute of Chartered Surveyors. He has been a Registered
Professional Surveyor since July 2004.

Mr. Leung Hung Kwong Derrick (R#3), aged 48, an Executive
Director. Mr. Leung joined the Group in August 2008. He is also the
Director of Yee Hop Engineering.

Mr. Derrick Leung was appointed as Independent Non-executive
Director of Chi Ho Development Holdings Ltd (Stock Code: 8423) on
22 February 2017. The shares of Chi Ho Development Holdings Ltd
were listed on the Growth Enterprises Market of HKEx.

The principal business of Chi Ho Development is the provision of
renovation, maintenance and fitting-out works.
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Mr. Leung has been the Technical Director of Yee Hop Engineering
for its registration as a Registered General Building Contractor
and Registered Specialist Contractor in foundation works category
with the Buildings Department since 2008 and 2011 respectively.
He has over 24 years of experience in the engineering and
construction industry. Mr. Leung is responsible for formulating
the corporate business strategies. Mr. Leung graduated from the
National Taiwan University with a Bachelor’s degree of Science in
Engineering. He holds a Master’s degree of Philosophy in Civil &
Structural Engineering from the Hong Kong University of Science
& Technology. He is currently a Registered Professional Engineer
(Geotechnical, Structural). He is a member of the Institution of
Structural Engineers and the Hong Kong Institution of Engineers.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Lee Luk Shiu (Z3%£k), aged 59, an Independent Non-executive
Director, the Chairman of the Audit Committee and a member of
the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration Committee of
the Company.

Mr. Lee has about 30 years of experience in commercial accounting
and corporate finance. Mr. Lee is a fellow member of the Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants and a member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He graduated from
the Hong Kong Shue Yan College (now known as Hong Kong Shue
Yan University) with a Diploma in Business Administration. Mr. Lee
has worked in the Stock Exchange for around 15 years where his
duties included regulating and monitoring the Hong Kong listed
companies in relation to their compliance with the Listing Rules and
processing new listing applications. His last position with the Stock
Exchange was an Assistant Vice President of the Listing Division.
Mr. Lee was also a senior consultant of an investment bank for
5 years. He is an Independent Non-executive Director of Huabao
International Holdings Limited (stock code: 336) and Hin Sang
Group (International) Holding Co. Ltd (stock code: 6893), the shares
of which are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Yu Hon Kwan (RJE3#), aged 54, an Independent Non-
executive Director, Chairman of both the Nomination Committee
and the Remuneration Committee and a member of the Audit
Committee of the Company.

Mr. Yu has over 30 years of experience in the construction industry.
Mr. Yu graduated from the University of Reading with a Bachelor’s
degree of Science in Quantity Surveying. He is a Member of the
Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors. Mr. Yu is the General
Manager (Community Relations) of Henderson Land Development
Company Limited. Mr. Yu was a lecturer (non-clinical) in the
Department of Real Estate and Construction of the University of
Hong Kong.
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Mr. Yu is a Justice of the Peace of Hong Kong. He has dedicated a
significant proportion of his time in community service. Mr. Yu is
currently the Vice-chairman of the Islands District Council, and the
Chairperson of the Civil Engineering and Development Department
— District Participation Group for the Greening Master Plan for
Islands District. He was awarded a Medal of Honour in July 2015 in
recognition of his long and dedicated public and community service.

Mr. Yu is a Director of the Business Environment Council from April
2016 (formerly also a Director of the same Board from June 2011
to February 2015). He was also a Director of the Hong Kong Green
Building Council from January 2014 to February 2015.

Mr. Wong Chi Keung Johnny (E£&58), aged 58, an Independent
Non-executive Director, a member of the Audit Committee, the
Nomination Committee and the Remuneration Committee of the
Company.

Mr. Wong graduated from the University of London with a
Bachelor’s degree of Laws with Honours and holds a Master's
degree of Laws from the University of London. He is a solicitor of
the High Court of Hong Kong, a solicitor of the Supreme Court
of England & Wales and a barrister and solicitor of the Supreme
Court of the Australia Capital Territory, Australia. He is currently a
partner of Messrs. Lo, Wong & Tsui, Solicitors, handling general and
commercial litigations, conveyancing works, land acquisition and
land exchange, real estate development and financing.

Mr. Wong has served as a member of the Provisional Regional
Council from 1998 to 1999, a member of the Tai Po District Council
from 1999 to 2003, a member of the Liquor Licensing Board
from January 2000 to January 2004, and a member of the Appeal
Tribunal Panel under the Buildings Ordinance from December 2000
to December 2004. He obtained the HKSAR Medal of Honour
in October 2002. Mr. Wong was also an appointed member of
the Yuen Long District Council from January 2008 to December
2011. He was an Independent Non-executive Director of SkyOcean
International Holdings Limited (formerly known as Allied Overseas
Limited), a company listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 593)
for the period from June 1993 to August 1997.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Chan King Yip (BR%&2£), aged 43, Project Director of the Group.
Mr. Chan joined the Group in April 2006. Mr. Chan has over
17 years of experience in handling engineering and construction
projects. Mr. Chan is responsible for the overall project management.
Mr. Chan graduated from the University of Hong Kong with a
Bachelor’s degree of Science.

Mr. Wu Tai Cheung (# X#), aged 59, Chief Financial Officer and
Company Secretary of the Company. Mr. Wu joined the Group
in October 2014. Mr. Wu has over 16 years of experience in
accounting and corporate finance.

Mr. Wu graduated from the University of Bolton (formerly known as
the Bolton Institute of Higher Education) with a Bachelor’s degree
of Arts in Accountancy and holds a Master’s degree of Business
Administration from the University of Newcastle, Australia. He is
currently a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, an associate of the Taxation Institute of Hong Kong,
a fellow of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants,
an associate of the Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries
and an associate of the Institute of Chartered Secretaries and
Administrators. Mr. Wu is an Independent Non-executive Director
of Munsun Capital Group Limited (stock code: 1194), the shares of
which are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Wu is currently the joint company secretary of Shenyang Public

Utility Holdings Company Limited (stock code: 747), the shares of
which are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.
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Ms. Wong Lok Man Vicko (E & #), aged 36, Environmental and
Safety Manager of the Group. Ms. Wong joined the Group in
November 2007.

Ms. Wong has over 12 years of experience in industrial safety
industry. Ms. Wong holds a Professional Diploma of Legal Executive
from the Hong Kong Institute of Vocational Education, a Diploma
in Occupational Health & Safety from the Open University of Hong
Kong and a Bachelor’s degree of Science in Environmental and
Occupational Safety & Health from the Hong Kong Polytechnic
University. She is a registered safety officer under the Factories and
Industrial Undertakings (Safety Officers and Safety Supervisors)
Regulations and a safety auditor. She is currently a member of
chartered building engineer of the Chartered Association of Building
Engineer and a full member of the International Institute of Risk and
Safety Management.

Ms. Wong has also obtained other relevant certificates such as
the Occupational Health and Safety Council Certificate for Safety
& Health Supervisor (Construction) in July 2002, the Certificate
of Occupational Safety and Health Trainer in February 2004, the
Occupational Health and Safety Council Combined Certificate for
Safety, Health & Environmental Supervisor (Construction) in June
2005, the Certificate of Site Audit Inspection Standards (Safety &
Roadwork Obligations) Course — Highways Department in 2010, the
Certificate of Occupational Health and Safety Council Fire Prevention
(Construction Industry) in March 2010, the Certificate of Supervision
of Tree Works Course in June 2011, the Certificate of Continuing
Professional Development for 1SO14001:2004 Environmental
Management System Introduction and Internal Auditing in October
2012, the Certificate of Competence in Display Screen Equipment
Assessment — Occupational Safety & Health Council in November
2013 and the Certificate of Attendance of BEAM Plus — Roles and
Responsibilities of Contractors in October 2013.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Wu Tai Cheung (# K#t), the Company Secretary of the
Company. Details of his biography are set out in the paragraph
headed “Senior management” in this section. Mr. Wu was
appointed as the Company Secretary in June 2015.
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The Board is pleased to present their report together with the
audited financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31
March 2017.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The Group
principally engaged in the construction industry in Hong Kong
focusing on the provision of foundation and other civil works
and tunneling works. The principal activities of subsidiaries of
the Company are set out in note 38 to the consolidated financial
statements. There has been no significant changes in the principal
business of the Group in the 2017 Financial Year.

REORGANISATION AND SHARE OFFER

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an
exempted company with limited liability on 12 February 2015.

Pursuant to a reorganisation to rationalise the structure of the
Group in preparation for the Listing of the Company’s shares on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, the Company became the
holding company of the companies now comprising the Group on
14 August 2015.

The Shares have been listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange on 18 December 2015.

RESULTS AND RESERVES

The results of the Group for the 2017 Financial Year are set out in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income on page 57 in this annual report.

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group
during the 2017 Financial Year are set out in consolidated statement
of changes in equity and note 37 to the consolidated financial
statements.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Details of segment information are set out in note 8 to the
consolidated financial statements.

DIVIDENDS

No interim dividends was paid by the Group during the 2017
Financial Year (2016 Corresponding Year: HK$127.2 million).

The Board does not recommend a payment of final dividend to the

shareholders of the Company for the 2017 Financial Year (2016
Corresponding Year: Nil).
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PROCEEDS FROM THE COMPANY'’S SHARE
OFFER

The Shares were listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
on 18 December 2015. The net proceeds from the Shares Offer
after deducting underwriting fees, commissions and other expenses
in connection with the Listing (the “Net Proceeds”) amounted to
approximately HK$104.3 million.

The Group intends to apply the Net Proceeds as set out in the
section headed “Future Plan and Use of Proceeds” in the Prospectus
and will review the use of proceeds periodically in view of the
market situation. As at 31 March 2017, the Net Proceeds have been
applied as follows:

Planned Use of Net Proceeds

RIS RCRREAR

REAXRBRDBENRERE

%D 22015512 A 18 B EB T X ik
e KB EHEE  BekE@ELMHE
R - BRHBEESHSRIEFHE S
REBFRE DO AEE104368T -

REBERBEBRERL KRB LTS
HR® | — S ERMEIIETFE - i
TFHZBIAEMEHIERR - K2017
F3A31H  FAISREBEFEEHAENTH

Net
Proceeds Balance
utilised unutilised

SR

BRRREE ABRAAHK

% HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000

BT AR TRT  BETRT

e to expand capacity on o AERETIMEEBER
foundation business and BB S S
purchase new machineries LABE £ 2 R R R iR
and vehicles to improve T1egE

operation efficiency and
enhance the working

capacity 60.2% 62,766 6,092 56,674
* to expand capacity on o AEBETRBESER

tunneling business and KB B R - DARRFA

purchase new machineries to T F#¢

enhance working capacity 29.1% 30,340 - 30,340
e to strengthen established o AEEMERAE - LA

position in the industry by FEINENCET 8

increasing the management i

staff 8.0% 8,341 - 8,341
e general working capital of o F{EAREER—MEE

the Group =i 2.7% 2,815 2,815 -
Total #a5tT 100.0% 104,262 8,907 95,355

As at 31 March 2017 and up to the date of this report, the unutilised
Net Proceeds were deposited in the Group’s bank accounts in Hong
Kong.

R2017F3A3 1B REEARERE - HX
BANMESRBFETHRRAEENE S
RIERTTERFE -
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BUSINESS REVIEW

A fair review of the business of the Group for the 2017 Financial
Year is set out in the section headed “Management Discussion and
Analysis” on pages 6 to 14 of this annual report.

Principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group
The principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group are detailed in
the section headed “Risk Factors” in the Prospectus.

In addition, various financial risks have been disclosed in the notes to
the consolidated financial statements in this annual report.

Likely development in the Group’s business

The likely development of the Group is disclosed in the paragraph
headed “Business Outlook” in the “Management Discussion and
Analysis” in this annual report.

An analysis using financial key performance indicators
The relevant financial key performance indicators relating to the
business of the Group are set out in the “Business Review” and
“Financial Review"” section in the “Management Discussion and
Analysis” and the consolidated financial statements in this annual
report.

Events after reporting period

Details of significant events after the reporting period and up to the
date of this annual report are set out in note 40 to the consolidated
financial statement.

Environmental policies and performance

Environment protection is critical to the long term development
of the Group. The Group places importance in the management
practice so as to prevent pollution, reduce waste and enhance waste
recycling. The Group has adopted environmental management
practices in accordance to I1SO14001:2004 (Environmental
management system) and ISO50001:2011 (Energy management
system). The Group promotes environment-friendly construction
worksites and implements appropriate facilities to improve the
environments of the construction worksites.
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Relationships with employees, customers, suppliers and
others

The Group maintained a good relationship with its employees and
had not experienced any significant disruptions to the operation due
to labour dispute. The Group committed to providing a safe and
healthy workplace for the staff and have arranged an annual safety
conference for staff of all levels to enhance their knowledge on site
safety.

The Group maintains a good relationship with its customers and
suppliers. The Group maintains close contact with the customers
and has conducted regular reviews of the requirements of the
customers and complaints. The Group will conduct appraisal of the
performance of suppliers on regular basis.

Compliance with Laws and Regulations

The Group recognises the importance of compliance with regulatory
requirements and risks of non-compliance with such requirements.
The Group has on-going review of the new enacted laws and
regulations which may affect the operations of the Group. During
the 2017 Financial Year, there is no incidence of non-compliance
with the relevant laws and regulations that have significant impact
on the business of the Group.

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 142.

DONATIONS

Charitable donations made by the Group during the 2017 Financial
Year amounted to HK$56,000 (2016 Corresponding Year: HK$1.1
million).

PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in plant and equipment of the Group during
the 2017 Financial Year are set out in note 17 to the consolidated
financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in share capital of the Company during the
2017 Financial Year are set out in note 29 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS
There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Articles or the laws of the Cayman Islands, being the jurisdiction
in which the Company was incorporated, which would oblige
the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing
shareholders of the Company.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

During the 2017 Financial Year, neither the Company nor its
subsidiary purchased, redeemed or sold any of the listed securities of
the Company.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 March 2017, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution, calculated in accordance with the provisions of the
Companies Law amounted to approximately HK$121.8 million.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the 2017 Financial Year, the Group’s five largest customers in
aggregate accounted for approximately 91.5% (2016 Corresponding
Year: 85.0%) of the total revenue of the Group and the largest
customer included therein accounted for approximately 47.0% (2016
Corresponding Year: 46.2%).

For the 2017 Financial Year, the Group’s five largest suppliers in
aggregate accounted for approximately 42.7% (2016 Corresponding
Year: 49.7%) of the total costs of construction materials and
accessories of the Group and the largest supplier included therein
accounted for approximately 22.0% (2016 Corresponding Year:
21.1%).

To the best knowledge of the Directors, none of the Directors,
their associates or any shareholders of the Company (which to the
knowledge of the Directors of the Company own more than 5%
of the Company’s issued share capital) had any interest in the five
largest suppliers or customers.
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DIRECTORS
The Directors of the Company during the 2017 Financial Year and
up to the date of this report are:

Executive Directors

Mr. JIM Yin Kwan Jackin

Mr. CHUI Mo Ming

Mr. YAN Chi Tat

Mr. LEUNG Hung Kwong Derrick

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. LEE Luk Shiu

Mr. YU Hon Kwan

Mr. WONG Chi Keung Johnny

Pursuant to the Articles, Mr. JIM Yin Kwan Jackin, Mr. LEE Luk
Shiu and Mr. YU Hon Kwan will retire and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election at the forthcoming AGM.

The Company has received from each of the Independent Non-
executive Directors a confirmation of independence pursuant to
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all of the
Independent Non-executive Directors are independent.

BIOGRAPHIES DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
MANAGEMENT

Biographical details of the Directors and the senior management of
the Group are set out on pages 26 to 30 of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the Executive Directors has entered into a service
agreement with the Company for an initial fixed term of three years
commencing from the date of Listing.

Each of the Independent Non-executive Directors has entered into
a service agreement with the Company under which each of them
is appointed for a period of one year commencing from the date of
the Listing and has renewed for a further three years.

None of the Directors being proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has an unexpired service
contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not
determinable by the Group within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.
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DIRECTORS’/CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS
INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE
Save for disclosed in this annual report, no transactions,
arrangements and contracts of significance in relation to the
Group’s business to which the Company’s subsidiaries, fellow
subsidiaries or its parent companies was a party and in which a
Director or Controlling Shareholders of the Company and the
Director’s connected party had a material interest, whether directly
or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during
the 2017 Financial Year.

REMUNERATION FOR DIRECTORS

In compliance with the CG Code, the Company has established
the Remuneration Committee to formulate remuneration policies.
Directors’ remuneration are subject to shareholders’ approval
at general meetings. Other emoluments are determined by the
Board with reference to Directors’ duties and responsibilities,
the recommendations of the Remuneration Committee and the
performance and results of the Group. Details of the remuneration
of the Company’s Directors are set out in note 13 to the
consolidated financial statements.

DEED OF NON-COMPETITION

Each of the Controlling Shareholders (as defined in the Listing Rules)
of the Company has executed a Deed of Non-competition dated
25 November 2015 in favour of the Company, which contains
certain non-competition undertakings given in favour of the Group.
Particulars of the Deed of Non-competition are set out in the section
headed “Relationship with the Controlling Shareholders” in the
Prospectus.

The controlling shareholders have provided a confirmation to the
Company confirming of their compliance with the Deed of Non-
competition during the 2017 Financial Year.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the significant related party transactions entered into
by the Group under the applicable accounting standards during
the 2017 Financial Year are set out in note 34 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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None of the related party transactions disclosed in note 34 to the
consolidated financial statements constituted disclosable non-
exempted connected transactions or non-exempted continuing
connected transactions of the Group under the Listing Rules. To
the extent of the related party transactions constituted connected
transactions as defined in the Listing Rules, the Company had
complied with relevant requirements under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The Group has the following transactions with connected persons
which constituted exempted continuing connected transactions
pursuant to the Listing Rules:

(i)  The Group through its subsidiary (as tenant) entered into a
lease agreement (the “Lease Agreement”) with Pioneer
National Development Limited (as landlord) (“Pioneer
National”) dated 25 July 2015 to lease the premises at Units
1104-1107, Nan Fung Commercial Centre, 19 Lam Lok Street,
Kowloon Bay, Kowloon, Hong Kong for office use for a term
of three years commencing from 25 July 2015 at a monthly
rental of HK$82,000 (exclusive of rates, government rent and
management fee payable by the tenant).

Pioneer National is owned as to 50% by Mr. Jim and 50%
by Mr. Chui, both are Executive Directors and Controlling
Shareholders of the Company. Pursuant to the Listing Rules,
Pioneer National is a connected person and transactions
contemplated under the Lease Agreement constituted
continuing connected transactions since the Listing.

As the relevant applicable percentage rations with respect to
the transactions contemplated under the Lease Agreement on
an annual basis are less than 5% and the annual consideration
is less than HK$3 million, the Lease Agreements constitute
exempt continuing connected transactions under the Listing
Rule 14A.76(1) and is exempt from the reporting, annual
review, announcement and independent shareholders’ approval
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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(i)

The Group through its subsidiaries entered into a master
agreement dated 25 November 2015 with Chun Wai Cranes
Limited (“CW Cranes”) in relation to the lease and mobilisation
of certain machineries, including crawler cranes (the “Master
Agreement”) for the period from 1 April 2015 to 31 March
2016. A separate rental contract in respect of each lease and
mobilisation of a machinery will be entered into to specify
the details of each lease and mobilisation arrangement which
include but not limited to the fee and payment terms. The
rental and mobilisation fee shall be agreed by the parties at
arm'’s length basis on normal commercial terms, which shall not
be less favourable than the terms that could be obtained by the
Group from an Independent Third Party.

CW Cranes is beneficially owned by Mr. Pang Chun Yu Wesley,
who is the son of Mr. Pang Wai. Mr. Pang was a shareholder
and Director of Y.H. Foundations within the last 12 months
from the date of the Listing. Pursuant to the Listing Rules,
CW Cranes is a connected person since the date of the Listing
Mr. Pang ceased to be a director and a shareholder of Y.H.
Foundations since 11 May 2015 and 31 May 2016 respectively.
Accordingly, CW Cranes ceased to be a connected person of
the Company with effect from 11 May 2016.

For the 2017 Financial Year, the transactions contemplated
under the Master Agreement amounted to approximately
HK$33,000.

As the relevant applicable percentage ratios with respect to the
transactions contemplated under the Master Agreement on an
annual basis are less than 5% and the annual consideration
is less than HK$3 million, the Master Agreement constitute
exempt continuing connected transactions under Listing Rule
14A.76(1) and is exempt from the reporting, annual review,
announcement and independent shareholders’ approval
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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(iii)

After the reporting period, the Group through its subsidiary
(as tenant) entered into three lease agreements (the “Land
Lease Agreements”) with Asia Time Development Limited,
Hilton Development Limited and Land Treasure Development
Limited (as landlords) to lease various pieces of land in New
Territories, Hong Kong for a term of three years commencing
from 1 April 2017 to 31 March 2020 at an aggregated monthly
rental of HK$188,000 (exclusive of rates, government rent and
management fee payable by the tenant).

Each of Asia Time Development Limited, Hilton Development
Limited and Land Treasure Limited is owned as to 50% by Mr.
Jim and 50% by Mr. Chui, both are Executive Directors and
Controlling Shareholders of the Company. Pursuant to the
Listing Rules, each of Asia Time Development Limited, Hilton
Development Limited and Land Treasure Limited is a connected
person and transactions contemplated under the Land Lease
Agreements constituted continuing connected transactions.

As the relevant applicable percentage rations with respect
to the transactions contemplated under the Land Lease
Agreements on an annual basis are less than 5% and the
annual consideration is less than HK$3 million, the Land
Lease Agreements constitute exempt continuing connected
transactions under the Listing Rule 14A.76(1) and is exempt
from the reporting, annual review, announcement and
independent shareholders’ approval requirements under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

(iii)
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 March 2017, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and Chief Executive Officer in the shares or underlying
shares or debentures of the Company and its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO), as recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section
352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code, were as follows:

(a) Long position in Shares

Name of Director Capacity/nature of interest

EEREBRITHRAERKRND - A
RO RESPHERIAR

R2017F3A318  EEFREFEZETHRAER
RAFREBEEZE(ERRESFLAER
BIEXVEL) B0 ~ MBI SKESHF - #
BARBALEFRRIERS REEDE
352EBTFEMERM - SERFZEESTR
HERAB MBI FRERSIORBIT

(a) REROWER

Approximate
percentage of
shareholding

interests of

Number of Shares our Company

Fris AR A B RRE
MR B RmtE B EE BABED
Mr. Jim Interest in a controlled corporation 375,000,000 Shares 75%
Btk (Note 1) 375,000,0000%
SEGEE R (M T)
Mr. Chui Interest in a controlled corporation 375,000,000 Shares 75%
Cpitast (Note 2) 375,000,0000%

SiRH AR (A72)

(b) Long position in YH Assets, an associated
corporation of our Company

(b) WA F]EEE XNTYH Assets i
A
A

Percentage of

the issued

share capital of

Name of Director Capacity/nature of interest YH Assets

FrihYH Assetst

EEHE 1 REmtE BITRETBEDL

Mr. Jim Beneficial owner (Note 1) 51%
Bk =%t/ X=UNC i)

Mr. Chui Beneficial owner (Note 2) 75%
wEE BB AMF72)
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Notes:

1. YH Assets is beneficially owned as to 51% by JJ1318 which is in turn
100% beneficially owned by Mr. Jim. Accordingly, Mr. Jim is deemed to be
interested in the Shares held by YH Assets under the SFO.

2. YH Assets is beneficially owned as to 49% by MM1318 which is in turn
100% beneficially owned by Mr. Chui. Accordingly, Mr. Chui is deemed to
be interested in the Shares held by YH Assets under the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors, Chief Executives
of the Company and/or any of their respective associates had any
interests or short positions in any Shares, underlying Shares and
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of part XV of the SFO) as at 31 March 2017
as recorded in the register required to be kept under section 352
of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS IN THE SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

OF THE COMPANY AND ITS ASSOCIATED
CORPORATIONS

As at 31 March 2017, so far as is known to the Directors, the
following persons (other than the Directors and Chief Executives
of the Company) had interests or short positions in the Shares
and underlying Shares of the Company which were required to
be notified to the Company under Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of
the SFO or which were recorded in the register required to be kept
under section 336 of the SFO.
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Long positions in the Shares and underlying shares of the Company:

RARRBD MARBERDEFE -

Approximate
percentage of
shareholding

interests of

Name Capacity/nature of interest Number of Shares our Company
¥ NI e

"L LB B REmtE BROEBE #ERBLEIE

YH Assets (Note) Beneficial owner 375,000,000 75%

YH Asset(#13t) EnlEEA

111318 (Note) Interest in a controlled corporation 375,000,000 75%

11318(/aE) RiEH AR

MM1318 (Note) Interest in a controlled corporation 375,000,000 75%

MM1318(/#7iz) SR GEE S

Note: YH Assets is beneficially owned as to 51% by JJ1318 and 49% by MM1318.
Accordingly, each of JJ1318 and MM 1318 is deemed to be interested in the
Shares held by YH Assets under the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, the Directors are not aware of any other
persons who have interests or short positions in the Shares and
underlying Shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed
to the Company under the provisions of Division 2 and 3 of Part XV
of the SFO, or which were recorded in the registered required to be
kept under section 336 of the SFO.
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed, at no time during the 2017 Financial Year was the
Company, its holding companies, or any of its subsidiaries or fellow
subsidiaries, a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors
of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition
of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Share Option Scheme is a share incentive scheme and is
established to recognise and acknowledge the contributions that
Eligible Participants (as defined below) have made or may make to
the Group so as to motivate the Eligible Participants to optimise their
performance and efficiency for the benefit of the Group, and attract,
retain or otherwise maintain ongoing business relationship with the
Eligible Participants whose contributions are, will or expected to be
beneficial to the Group.

The Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period
of ten years commencing on 25 November 2015, after which no
further options will be issued. The total number of Shares which
may be issued upon exercise of all options to be granted under the
Share Option Scheme and any other schemes shall not in aggregate
exceed 50,000,000 Shares (10% of the Shares in issue as at the date
of Listing), unless approved by the shareholders in general meeting
(the maximum number of Shares of the Company which may be
issued upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to
be exercised under the Share Option Scheme and any other share
option schemes of the Company must not exceed 30% of the total
number of shares of the Company in issue from time to time). No
option may be granted to any Eligible Participant which, if exercised
in full, would result in the total number of Shares issued and to be
issued upon exercise of the options already granted or to be granted
to such Eligible Participant under the Share Option Scheme (including
exercised, cancelled and outstanding share options) in any 12-month
period up to and including the date of such grant exceeding 1% in
aggregate of the Shares in issue as at the date of such grant. The
offer of a grant of share options shall be accepted when the offer
letter has been duly signed and a consideration of HK$1 in total has
been paid by the grantee. The exercise period of the share options
granted is determinable by the Directors and ends on a date which is
not later than ten years from the date of the offer of share options.
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Eligible Participants include: (i) any Eligible Employees. “Eligible
Employees” means any employee (whether full time or part time,
including any Executive Director but excluding any Non-executive
Director) of the Company, any subsidiary or any entity in which the
Group holds at least 20% of its issued share capital (“Invested
Entity”); (i) any Non-executive Director (including Independent Non-
executive Directors) of the Company, any subsidiary or any Invested
Entity; (iii) any supplier of goods or services of any member of the
Group or any Invested Entity; (iv) any customer of any member
of the Group or any Invested Entity; (v) any person or entity that
provides research, development or other technological support to
any member of the Group or any Invested Entity; (vi) any shareholder
of any member of the Group or any Invested Entity or any holder of
any securities issued by any member of the Group or any Invested
Entity; (vii) any advisor (professional or otherwise) or consultant to
any area of business or business development of any member of the
Group or any Invested Entity; and (viii) any other group or classes
of participants who have contributed or may contribute by way of
joint venture, business alliance or other business arrangement to the
development and growth of the Group, and, for the purposes of
the Share Option Scheme, options may be granted to any company
wholly owned by one or more Eligible Participants.

The exercise price of options shares shall not be less than the highest
of: (i) the closing price of the Share as stated in the Stock Exchange's
daily quotations sheet on the date of grant of the relevant option,
which must be a day on which the Stock Exchange is open for the
business of dealing in securities (@ “Trading Day"); (ii) the average
closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
guotations sheets for the five Trading Days immediately preceding
the offer date of the relevant option; and (iii) the nominal value of a
Share on the offer date.

The principal terms of the Share Option Scheme are set out in the
Prospectus.

Pursuant to the Share Option Scheme, the Company may grant
options to Directors and employees of the Group and other eligible
participants to subscribe for Shares not exceeding 10% of the
Shares in issue, 50,000,000 Shares.

No option has been granted under the Share Option Scheme and
no option was exercised during 2017 Financial Year. There was no
option under the Share Option Scheme outstanding as of 31 March
2017.
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SUFFICIENT OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has
maintained a sufficient public float as required under the Listing
Rules since the Listing.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Details of the Company’s corporate governance practices are set out
in the “Corporate Governance Report” section in the annual report.

AUDIT COMMITTEE
The Audit Committee has reviewed the consolidated financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2017.

EQUITY LINK AGREEMENTS

Save as disclosed in this annual report relating to share option
scheme, no equity-link agreement have been entered into during
the year ended 31 March 2017 or subsisted for the 2017 Financial
Year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the year ended 31 March 2017.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES
The employees and remuneration policies of the Group during the
2017 Financial Year is set out in the subsection headed “Employees
and Remuneration Policies” on page 13 of this annual report. The
content is part of the report of the Directors.

AUDITORS
A resolution will be proposed in the AGM to re-appoint SHINEWING
(HK) CPA Limited as auditors of the Company.
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The annual general meeting of the Company is scheduled to be
held in September 2017. The closure of the register of members of
the Company for determining the entitlement to attend and vote at
the annual general meeting will be set out in the Notice of Annual
General Meeting which will be despatched to shareholders of the
Company in due course.

On behalf of the Board

Mr. JIM Yin Kwan Jackin
Chairman
Hong Kong, 30 June 2017
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faikPAa

Shine‘ZOing

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF YEE HOP HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Yee Hop
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 57 to 141, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
March 2017, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in
equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including
a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
March 2017, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA")
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited
43/F., Lee Garden One

33 Hysan Avenue

Causeway Bay, Hong Kong
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditors’
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group
in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the “Code”) and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Accounting for construction contracts

Refer to notes 8 and 21 to the consolidated financial statements and
the accounting policies on pages 77 to 78.

R EXEEE)
BEAHWETEE

A2HFETIETSEMER S ME MR TS &

21 SRR o

The key audit matter
HRELER

How the matter was addressed
in our audit

BAeNETNAEEZEE

For construction companies, there is considerable judgment in
assessing the appropriate contract revenue and margin which in
turn affect the recognition of amounts due from (to) customers
for contract work. Revenue and margin are recognised based
on the stage of completion of individual contract. Stage of
completion was determined on the contract costs incurred over
the total estimated contract costs. Estimation of proper margin
involves the assessment of the completeness and accuracy of
contract costs incurred and forecast costs to complete.
MBERARME @ RNEHEEE A O R AERREAE HE
Hgmr 2R (B EPEHNIRRIBRIER e KFIET)
RIBERIE K TR BRI o STABE R VIR ET & AU A 4858
FREERE XK AERE « BEMNBEES MBAEE SRR
T IRAN G T BIZE RERE -

We tested revenue recognised during
the year to ensure that the Group’s
accounting policy on construction
contracts is in accordance with the
standard.
HPAARFRABRORRIARR &
SENBEEANS T EREFHAER—
B o

We assessed whether the construction
revenue recognised was reasonable
through inspection of certificate of
completion stage issued by customers.
We assessed whether the construction
costs recognised was reasonable through
critically challenged the forecast costs
to complete, contract costs, and the
completeness and validity of provisions
arising from customer disputes. We
assessed reliability of management’s
assessment in budget costs by considering
the historical actual costs and estimation
of budget costs of completed projects.
HAEBREERP BN TKERES
N FERNEENEZEEAE - ]
PMFERBREREHTINAR - 5K
AERRETFUDNBEN TBEE
NAB B AP ERNEZENRNER
A - HPEBERBEERKARE
e LI B TR E AR (A 5T AR & I8
EREER AN HEEEIE -

We have assessed the recognition of
amounts due from (to) customers for
contract work by analysing the amount
difference between contract costs
incurred plus recognised profits less
recognised losses and progress billings by
projects.
BIMEBRSNEEENE QKRN #
R AR B MR A ET B BLTE B T
ERNZEBEUTHEK(EMEFPE0T
ERIEMER o
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Impairment of amounts due from customers for
contract work and trade and retention receivables

Refer to notes 5, 20 and 21 to the consolidated financial statements
and the accounting policies on pages 83 to 87.

FAREZEEG)

EBREFENIRRERE S EWFIE

R EWRESBE
FERMFEIIETE LA IS RERMFES
20K 21 & EHHCR -

The key audit matter
BREXEE

How the matter was addressed
in our audit

BEMES A REZEE

As at 31 March 2017, the Group had amounts due from
customers for contract work and trade and retention receivables
derived from construction contracts of approximately
HK$48,280,000 and HK$133,706,000 respectively. We focused
on recoverability of amounts due from customers for contract
work and trade and retention receivables because the policy
for making impairment requires a high level of management
judgement and the significance of the amounts involved.
R2017F3A31H  EEENEKREFANIREFERKRER
EANNE HRIGRIE KRB IRE S D 54781 48,280,0007T &
78#133,706,0007T - HFVTERKEZEFANIREFIBAREHIE
WORIE & R YR El € 2 ATIREN Y - EFTS R EXR @ (EHREZ
BUR/A M E TR B B &k T -

Our procedures were designed to
review the management’s assessment
of impairment of amounts due from
customers for contract work and trade
and retention receivables.
BMNEFEEEEERBYHRKER
BHTRFAKE 5 EUWKFIRE KRR
ey AEEpNI R R

We have challenged the reasonableness
of the methods used by the management
for the recoverability of amounts due
from customers for contract work and
trade and retention receivables by taking
into consideration of ageing analysis,
creditworthiness of each customer, cash
receipt and billings raised after year end
of trade and retention receivables.

Bt MR DT - FREFPHNEE -]
WA RERZKEE HRYIE K E
WRESHFIER  KMEREEES
BYEPFPEHNTIREFIERE S EKGIE
AREMRTAN A AEEBEEIRHER -

In addition for material amount due from
customers for contract works, we had
also assessed if the remaining contract
sum is sufficient to cover the outstanding
amount.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Provision of litigation claims

Refer to note 25 to the consolidated financial statements and the
accounting policies on page 89.

FEREEXEEE)
AR

FLHFENGAM B MR T2 RE

B -

The key audit matter
HRELER

How the matter was addressed
in our audit

BAeNETNAEEZEE

Certain litigation cases and claims in relation to unsatisfactory
works performed by the Group and personnel injuries were
identified. Potential liabilities arising out from such cases and
claims are significant risk area.

E#nlst BEEEFTETRMERNIEARAFEENETH
AREMGRRE - RELZFEHLRENEEEEEEARRE

=

The assessment of the provision for litigation cases and claims
involves estimates based on past experience of similar events and
recent developments of the cases and claims. The ultimate liability
to be borne by the Group is dependent on future external events
which are inherently uncertain and actual claims may therefore
deviate from management estimations.

MR RRER BT ES MRBBERBEFHNERIAKL
FERMMRENSTHERMENGEE - SEBEPMARNREK
BERFREMNINEEM - MABEFHARE At ERRE
AR ERENEERMREE -

We have identified the assessment of the provision for litigation
cases and claims as a key audit matter because a significant level
of management judgement is required in the assessment of
variable factors and assumptions.

HREF A ZEEZMRREFTEETREN S /KT HE - S
REFART R RERBRAR —HAREREE -

Our procedures were designed to assess
the contingency provision for litigation
cases and claims.
BHAWREFE BT ERFARG RRE
A RIER B -

We performed litigation searches to
identify any outstanding litigation
cases to ensure all litigation cases were
identified, including potential ones.
HAETRARIEZIAHR T RERD
FAEM - BREBDNEEEERMEH
PA SREAZRM o

To assess the adequacy of the provision,
we inquired of the lawyer of the Group
in respect of claims or proceedings,
inspected relevant correspondence with
the plaintiff and obtained external legal
opinion from the Group's legal counsel to
ascertain the likelihood and quantum of
provision for each material case.

R EBEEOHRRIEE  HAEHRE
HFRIEFHER BEEEARE - WE
REAZEEEREERE U@ &
SEHEZERIGIIEERER - A
R ERREMGOAIsE I R 2R -

Subsequent events were checked and
all the relevant regulatory and litigation
documents were obtained and reviewed
to follow the updated status.

BPEEEREREN - WEEERERN
P78 A8 B8 B2 B Ko A 5 S DA BRAE B IR
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all of the information
included in the annual report other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS OF THE
COMPANY AND THOSE CHARGED WITH
GOVERNANCE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for
such internal control as the directors of the Company determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
of the Company are responsible for assessing the Group's ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors of the Company either intend to
liguidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group's financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE

AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion, solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with our agreed terms of engagement, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability
to any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

e  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors of the Company.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B AR E

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE

AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS (Continued)

e Conclude on the appropriateness of the Company’s directors’
use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B AR E

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE

AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters.
We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not
be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Lau Kai Wong.

SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Lau Kai Wong

Practising Certificate Number: P06623

Hong Kong
30 June 2017
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

FRBRREMEARER

For the year ended 31 March 2017 EZ2017F3A831HIEFE

2017 2016
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
ks BET T T T
Revenue Wz 8 498,278 704,393
Cost of services RRAS A A (419,821) (530,887)
Gross profit EF 78,457 173,506
Other income and gain EH U AN zs 9 2,526 3,413
Administrative expenses TE R (52,504) (62,247)
Finance costs BhE RN 10 (1,601) (1,603)
Profit before taxation B A 26,878 113,069
Income tax expense TSt 11 (4,344) (18,803)
Profit and total comprehensive 4 P | & 2 Iz 4858
income for the year 12 22,534 94,266
Profit (loss) and total LA & 75 (G s (B18)
comprehensive income ke (FZ)
(expense) attributable to: 1BEE
Owners of the Company RABERA 22,534 94,294
Non-controlling interests FEPEAR I A - (28)
22,534 94,266
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Earnings per share BRET
Basic and diluted AN EE 16 0.05 0.23
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e MBRR R

At 31 March 2017 7201793 A31H

2017 2016
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
it BEET T BT
Non-current assets ERBEE
Plant and equipment HEs &% 17 54,330 69,983
Debentures &% 18 1,460 1,460
Deferred tax assets EEMIRE = 19 568 -
56,358 71,443
Current assets MENEE
Trade and retention receivables 2 5 fEUFRIE 2 20 133,706 154,998
FEWR B &
Amounts due from customers R EF A4 TIZFIA 21 48,280 11,829
for contract work
Deposits, prepayments and e~ FNAFRIAREAM 22 16,625 9,388
other receivables FEUW IR
Tax recoverable AT B R I8 597 -
Pledged bank deposit BIIRIRITER 23 2,038 2,032
Bank balances and cash IRITHESHRNIRS 23 75,287 132,554
276,533 310,801
Current liabilities mENEE
Trade and retention payables H S ENFIER 24 45,257 45,216
FERHRE S
Amounts due to customers for ENEFEXTIERIA 21 567 61,396
contract work
Accruals and other payables FEETE A KA T FIE 25 13,461 11,601
Bank borrowing RITEE 26 1,778 -
Obligations under finance leases EYEFEET
— due within one year ——FREIH 27 11,279 16,353
Tax payable AT TR 1,118 2,189
73,460 136,755
Net current assets MEVEEFE 203,073 174,046
Total assets less current liabilities BEALERTEAER 259,431 245,489
Non-current liabilities EmEaE
Obligations under finance leases E&EFAEE(T
— due after one year ——F1&EIH 27 5,512 12,974
Long service payment obligations AR & A& 28 233 544
Deferred tax liabilities FEREFIEEE 19 6,850 7,669
12,595 21,187
Net assets BEFE 246,836 224,302
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e MBI R

2017 2016
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Btat BET T BT

Capital and reserves BRI
Share capital &N 29 5,000 5,000
Reserves i 241,836 219,302
Total equity R AERR 246,836 224,302

The consolidated financial statements on pages 57 to 141 were FELIRVMNENGEVBRETBEFEN
approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 30 2017F 6 A30 A#tb & M HET)EE - IR 7))

June 2017 and are signed on its behalf by: ATHREREE
Jim Yin Kwan, Jackin Chui Mo Ming
ERE HREH
Director Director
o =
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
MEEREER

For the year ended 31 March 2017 EZ2017F3A831HIEFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

ALNRER AR

Non-
Share Share  Merger Other  Retained controlling
capital premium  reserve  reserve profits Total interests Total
BE  ROBE AHEE HtRE  F9EN it FERER st
HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000
BT BMTn ABTn A%Tn E%Tr B%Tr BETr  BMTR
(Notea)  (Note b)
(ita)  (Bitb)
At 1 April 2015 (note ¢) 2015F4 A1 8 (Fto) 14,800 - - 308 123693 138,801 844 139,645
Issue of new shares (note d) ~ Z1TTR& (7 (Hi3+d) 8 - - - - 8 - 8
Reorganisation (note 29(b)) iiﬁ(mw( ) (14,808) - 14,808 - - - - -
Issue of new shares in G YNG
connection with the R (F3E29(0)
listing of shares of the
Company (note 29(c)) 1,250 123,750 - - - 125,000 - 125,000
Share issue expenses BBz - (14 - - - (141 - (41
Capitalisation issue of EXETRG
shares (note 29(d)) (BfFEE29(d)) 3750 (3,750) - - - - - -
Dividends recognised as BARD RS
distribution (note 15) (FrzE15) - - - - (127,000 (127,200) - (127,200
Profit (loss) and total FREAN(EE) RZER
comprehensive income W (R ) %
(expense) for the year - - - - 94,294 94,294 (28) 94,266
Acquisition of equity MIERERE— S
interest in a subsidiary BB AR R
from non-controlling (Mi3tb)
interests (note b) - - - 816 - 816 (816) -
At31 March 2016 and #201653A31A R
1 April 2016 2016F4 718 5000 112,583 14,808 1,124 90,787 224,302 - 224302
Profit and total FRRNREZEYR
comprehensive income 5
for the year - - - - 22,534 22,534 - 22,534
At 31 March 2017 R2017%3A31H 5000 112,583 14,808 1,124 113,321 246,836 - 246,836

Note a: Merger reserve represents the difference between the nominal Hidga - A EEEEEEREHANEOHEBAT
value of the issued capital of subsidiaries acquired pursuant to a EETEAZEBEERBEXZNE LD
group reorganisation over the consideration paid for acquiring these A REBREMNESE -
subsidiaries.

Note b: Other reserve represents the difference between the carrying value Hizzb : HMEEIEREE2016E3H831HILEER
of the additional equity interests of the subsidiary acquired and the WEMBARMNZEIINEENERmEREE X
consideration paid of HK$116 during the year ended 31 March 2016. MREBEHEZEBE1167T ©

Note c: Balance represented the aggregate share capital of certain subsidiaries of Hifitc - HEREREATKA - AR FHNE THE
the Company prior to the completion of the reorganisation. NEIHI AN ABEE o

Note d: Balance represented 1,000 subscription shares allotted and issued at par Hidgd - EREREBEHTKA REABEE

of US$1 each upon incorporation of Yee Hop Investments Limited (“YH
Investments”) prior to the completion of group reorganisation.

RAR([BRERE ) EMKILIEZ - ZEBK

E{E 15T A3 BT TEY 1,000 R B A D ©
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

II\I_\éiﬁﬁ\;ﬁlii

For the year ended 31 March 2017 & Z201743A31HILFE

2017 2016
HK$’'000 HK$'000
BT T BT
OPERATING ACTIVITIES RETES
Profit before taxation BRA% A 26,878 113,069
Adjustments for: RUATIEBELTAE -
Bank interest income HRITHLEWA (521) (418)
Reversal of provision for long REARS S #E
service payment (271) -
Finance costs BhE KA 1,601 1,603
Write off of a trade receivable HsE B 5 pE IR IE 142 54
Loss (gain) on disposal of plant S MBS R AR A Y
and equipment, net EE (k=) - R 170 (162)
Government subsidy R AT 4 B (242) (752)
Depreciation of plant and s R R EIITE
equipment 29,370 29,318
Operating cash flows before LBEEREYRINEERE
movements in working capital mE 57,127 142,712
Decrease (increase) in trade and B S REIWEE K EINIRE &
retention receivables B (12 0) 21,150 (33,793)
Increase in amounts due from ERE P& % T2 RIAEE N
customers for contract work (36,451) (6,287)
Increase in deposits, prepayments % BN FIEREAELY
and other receivables FIEHE N (7,237) (380)
Increase in trade and retention E 5T FIA R ENRE S
payables N 4 8,374
Decrease in amounts due to ENEFPAEHITEFIERD
customers for contract work (60,829) (35,594)
Increase (decrease) in accruals and JESTE R R E A EA IR
other payables EACR L) 1,860 (7,910)
Long service payment paid ENEHARBE (40) -
Cash (used in) generated from SEES (TR TSRS
operations (24,379) 67,122
Hong Kong Profits Tax paid BEEBREH (7.399) (29,500)
NET CASH (USED IN) FROM REES(MAIAEES
OPERATING ACTIVITIES HEE (31,778) 37,622
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

GFERTRER

2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REES
Purchase of plant and equipment EEMEREE (9,914) (7,315)
Proceeds from disposal of plant and & #28 & & EATSRIE

equipment 278 162

Interest received BUCFE 515 418
Government subsidy received IS ATFE B 242 752
Withdrawal of pledged bank R EFRITER
deposits — 1,994
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING KREEBMARSFRAE
ACTIVITIES (8,879) (3,989)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES MEED
Proceeds from issue of shares BT TS FOA - 125,008
Proceed from finance leaseback R EM L LTS FUR
arrangement - 2,955
Repayment of bank borrowing RITEEER (10,222) (10,683)
Interest paid BRFE (1,601) (1,603)
Share issue expenses A& 21 TRI = (7,417)
Repayment of obligations under EERERERMT
finance leases (16,787) (18,514)
Dividend paid B E - (127,200)
New bank borrowing raised BEEHMRTEE 12,000 10,000
NET CASH USED IN FINANCING BEEEPTRIR & F
ACTIVITIES (16,610) (27,454)
NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH ~ IR& MIESZEWORA)#E
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS HEE (57,267) 6,179
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT F¥I8 R & RIREEEY)
THE BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 132,554 126,375
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT  FRHIRE RIS HEY
THE END OF THE YEAR, represented ~ (ASR1T&E#EIBEERIR)
by bank balances and cash 75,287 132,554
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR AR

For the year ended 31 March 2017 & Z201743A31HILFE

GENERAL

Yee Hop Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was incorporated
as an exempted company with limited liability incorporated in
the Cayman Islands under the Companies Law, Chapter 22
(Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman
Islands on 12 February 2015 and its shares are listed on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited on 18 December 2015.
Its parent and ultimate parent is Yee Hop Assets Limited (“YH
Assets”), incorporated in the British Virgin Islands. Its ultimate
controlling parties are Mr. Jim Yin Kwan, Jackin and Mr. Chui
Mo Ming (the “Controlling Shareholders”). The address of
the registered office of the Company is PO Box 1350 Clifton
House, 75 Fort Street, George Town, the Cayman Islands, and
its principal place of business is located at Room 1104-06, 11/
F., Nan Fung Commercial Centre, 19 Lam Lok Street, Kowloon
Bay, Hong Kong.

The Company is an investment holding company while the
principal subsidiaries are principally engaged in the provision of
foundation and other civil works and tunneling works in Hong
Kong.

The functional currency of the Company and its subsidiaries
incorporated in Hong Kong are Hong Kong dollars (“HKS$").
For the purpose of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the Company and its subsidiaries (hereinafter
collectively referred to as the “Group”) adopted HK$ as its
presentation currency.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RR MR

BASIS OF PREPARATION

Pursuant to the reorganisation as detailed in the section
headed “History, Reorganisation and Corporate Structure”
to the prospectus of the Company dated 8 December 2015
(the "Reorganisation”), the Company became the holding
company of the companies now comprising the Group on 14
August 2015. The Company and its subsidiaries have been
under the control and beneficially owned by the Controlling
Shareholders, since their respective dates of incorporation or
establishment up to 14 August 2015. The Group comprising
the Company and its subsidiaries resulting from the
Reorganisation is regarded as a continuing entity. Accordingly,
the consolidated financial statements of the Group has been
prepared on the basis as if the Company had always been the
holding company of the companies now comprising the Group
since the beginning of the reporting period, using the principles
of merger accounting as set out in note 4 below.

The consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in
equity and consolidated statement of cash flows including the
financial performance and cash flows of the companies now
comprising the Group for the year ended 31 March 2016 has
been prepared as if the current group structure had been in
existence since 1 April 2015.

REARXBBEA20159F12 A8HH
BREEPIES - BEARRFIEE]
—fFFAELA(TEA])  ARFAR
2015F 8 A 14H K BIRFFAHENK A& E
LA R AR o ARR) MEK
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B ZE 201568 148 IF— B L%
RRIZEHMAEESERHEES - AEA
MR E RENB A S FTAER /7R
SEWRAFESTE - At - £5E
RiRE M SRR EILBIMAR R E R
SR —EAEREAXRAEE SR
RNAMIERARMELE - KA TXXW
FHARTEM A e RAGER -

HE2016F3A31HILFENGEAE
mREMPERER  GEESE
EZRFEHEeRER(PEREERAE
SEZEATNUBRARRESTE)
ETHE - MuRRSERBEE2015
FARTHREEFE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RR MR

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRS(s)")

In the current year, the Group has applied the following
new and revised HKFRSs, which include HKFRSs, Hong
Kong Accounting Standards (“HKAS(s)”), amendments and
Interpretations (“Int(s)”), issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA").

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to

HKFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle

Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure Initiative
Amendments to HKAS 16 and Clarification of Acceptable
HKAS 38 Methods of Depreciation and
Amortisation

Amendments to HKAS 16 and Agriculture: Bearer Plants
HKAS 41

Amendments to HKAS 27 Equity Method in Separate
Financial Statements
Investment Entities: Applying

the Consolidation Exception

Amendments to HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKFRS 11 Accounting for Acquisitions of

Interests in Joint Operations

The application of the new and revised HKFRSs in the current
year has had no material impact on the Group’s financial
performance and positions for the current and prior years and/
or on the disclosures set out in these consolidated financial
statements.

Annual Report 2016/17 Ff

FERIFE] RAMETT BB 15
BELEA(EEBMBHREE

U

REE  AEECEREB A
S([EREFMIE DEMN T
FIREERTRAMBMERER - Hep
BRELMBHREEN  FEGE
AN(TEBEER])  ErT 2k

([RE)) -

BREMBHEE BEYHRELE

BIEMERT BllgF E ek
(2012 %2014
FIRE)

BESERET BHTERE

SRESET

EAGRTERE  EBAESIHNITE

165k R B BE & $ichapra

FTZERIZE 3857

HIEET

EAGRTERE  BE: LEMED

16 REEE

FTERIZEA4157

HIEET

BEGETERE  BUBBHRERLN

275RENEET A

B REE RETE  EAK

BIZE105% - & A ABRRBIIME

VS 7 R A 2E i

A28 &
BERTEERIE
285%
BAEMBIwELE
BIIZE115%

IEEA SN EIRERS
I ZETERIE

RAFRERAIM REEFTREMH
WEEQS EHAEERR LBESF
MM BRBERAR R, HZELEE
MBRERTHANREEHNEBREX

B/ 4R
=

65



66

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RR MR

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG 3. FEA#E] REIERT BB
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS WmELE(EBMBREE

("HKFRS(s)"”) (Continued) A1) @)
New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet AR 1B 1) R A BV ET AT R 4S8R
effective BB EHREER

AEBHARREFRAATCEME R
REMEFE METEEW RS

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised
HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective:

AR

HKFRS 9 (2014) Financial Instruments? BERVBHREED SRTA?
955 (2014%F)
HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with BRITEREER RARFPA G
Customers? %1558
HKFRS 16 Leases* BAUBmEER MAE
£165%
HK(IFRIC) - Int 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and EE(BEHKRE INERZRIBAR
Advance Consideration? 2EBLZEg)- 1B
EREE225%
Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to HKFRSs R BRELL BFAVBRSENN
2014-2016 Cycle? I FREBE(20145
E20164FEH)
Amendments to HKAS 7 Disclosure Initiative' EESHERFETH BREAED
fER]
Amendments to HKAS 12 Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets EASIERFE12 RAEREBERE
for Unrealised Losses' SREVEET EHIBEE
Amendments to HKAS 40 Transfers of Investment Property? BREOTENFEL ERINEYE?
UCH]
Amendments to HKFRS 2 Classification and Measurement ERVHHREER RGO AERARR
of Share-based Payment F25RHNER] SH DR E?
Transactions?
Amendments to HKFRS 4 Applying HKFRS 9 Financial EABWELN RRERTENBER
Instruments with HKFRS 4 BAEOERT EHERIFE R
Insurance Contracts? TAREBWS
AL EAFUR
BB %92
Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets BRMEIRERER REFHEEBERA
and HKAS 28 between an Investor and its FI0RLEEE EhEZRENE
Associate or Joint Venture’ SHERIE 2857/ EHEREET
EET &5

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017.

! 7201741 A1 A 2 &R E S HIRE

ER o

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018. 2 201841 A1 B8 2 1% B84 E RS
AR o

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017 or 1 3 20171 B1H2018E1 A1 88~

January 2018, as appropriate. BRI EEAR £ -

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019. 4 201951 A1 H sz 12 Bta 8 5 [E HifE
ER o
° Effective date not yet been determined. 5 AREEAEMBE -

The directors of the Company anticipate that, except as
describe below, the application of other new and revised
HKFRSs will have no material impact on the results and the
financial position of the Group.

RRREETAY - R TAAEES
FE R AT RGBT BEAT RS
ERE T HAEEEE RGN
TEREATE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RR MR

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRS(s)") (Continued)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet
effective (Continued)

HKFRS 9 (2014) Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 issued in 2009 introduces new requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial assets. HKFRS 9
was amended in 2010 and includes the requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial liabilities and for
derecognition. In 2013, HKFRS 9 was further amended to bring
into effect a substantial overhaul of hedge accounting that will
allow entities to better reflect their risk management activities
in the financial statements. A finalised version of HKFRS 9 was
issued in 2014 to incorporate all the requirements of HKFRS
9 that were issued in previous years with limited amendments
to the classification and measurement by introducing a “fair
value through other comprehensive income” (“FVTOCI")
measurement category for certain financial assets. The finalised
version of HKFRS 9 also introduces an “expected credit loss”
model for impairment assessments.

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 (2014) are described as follows:

e All recognised financial assets that are within the scope
of HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement to be subsequently measured at amortised
cost or fair value. Specifically, debt investments that are
held within a business model whose objective is to collect
the contractual cash flows, and that have contractual cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal outstanding are generally measured
at amortised cost at the end of subsequent reporting
periods. Debt instruments that are held within a business
model whose objective is achieved both by collecting
contractual cash flows and selling financial assets, and
that have contractual terms of the financial asset give rise
on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding, are measured at FVTOCI. All other debt
investments and equity investments are measured at their
fair values at the end of subsequent reporting periods.
In addition, under HKFRS 9 (2014), entities may make
an irrevocable election to present subsequent changes
in the fair value of an equity investment (that is not held
for trading) in other comprehensive income, with only
dividend income generally recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RR MR

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRS(s)") (Continued)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet

effective (Continued)

HKFRS 9 (2014) Financial Instruments (Continued)

e With regard to the measurement of financial liabilities
designated as at fair value through profit or loss, HKFRS
9 (2014) requires that the amount of change in the
fair value of the financial liability that is attributable to
changes in the credit risk of that liability is presented
in other comprehensive income, unless the recognition
of the effects of changes in the liability’s credit risk in
other comprehensive income would create or enlarge
an accounting mismatch in profit or loss. Changes in
fair value of financial liabilities attributable to changes in
the financial liabilities’ credit risk are not subsequently
reclassified to profit or loss. Under HKAS 39, the entire
amount of the change in the fair value of the financial
liability designated as fair value through profit or loss was
presented in profit or loss.

e In the aspect of impairment assessments, the impairment
requirements relating to the accounting for an entity’s
expected credit losses on its financial assets and
commitments to extend credit were added. Those
requirements eliminate the threshold that was in HKAS 39
for the recognition of credit losses. Under the impairment
approach in HKFRS 9 (2014), it is no longer necessary for
a credit event to have occurred before credit losses are
recognised. Instead, expected credit losses and changes in
those expected credit losses should always be accounted
for. The amount of expected credit losses is updated
at each reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk
since initial recognition and, consequently, more timely
information is provided about expected credit losses.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RR MR

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

(“HKFRS(s)") (Continued)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet

effective (Continued)

HKFRS 9 (2014) Financial Instruments (Continued)

. HKFRS 9 (2014) introduces a new model which is more
closely aligns hedge accounting with risk management
activities undertaken by companies when hedging their
financial and non-financial risk exposures. As a principle-
based approach, HKFRS 9 (2014) looks at whether a
risk component can be identified and measured and
does not distinguish between financial items and non-
financial items. The new model also enables an entity to
use information produced internally for risk management
purposes as a basis for hedge accounting. Under HKAS
39, it is necessary to exhibit eligibility and compliance
with the requirements in HKAS 39 using metrics that
are designed solely for accounting purposes. The new
model also includes eligibility criteria but these are
based on an economic assessment of the strength of
the hedging relationship. This can be determined using
risk management data. This should reduce the costs of
implementation compared with those for HKAS 39 hedge
accounting because it reduces the amount of analysis
that is required to be undertaken only for accounting
purposes.

HKFRS 9 (2014) will become effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2018 with early application
permitted.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the adoption
of HKFRS 9 (2014) in the future may have an impact on
the Group’s results and financial position, including the
classification categories and the measurement of financial
assets, and disclosures. For instance, the Group will be required
to replace the incurred loss impairment model in HKAS 39
with an expected loss impairment model that will apply to
various exposures to credit risk. HKFRS 9 will also change the
way the Group classifies and measures its financial assets,
and will require the Group to consider the business model
and contractual cash flow characteristics of financial assets to
determine classification and subsequent measurement. For
financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or
loss, the change in fair value that is attributable to changes in
credit risk could be presented in other comprehensive income.
However, it is not practicable to provide a reasonable estimate
of the effect of HKFRS 9 (2014) until a detailed review has been
completed.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RR MR

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRS(s)") (Continued)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet
effective (Continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

The core principle of HKFRS 15 is that an entity should
recognise revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods
or services to customers in an amount that reflects the
consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled
in exchange for those goods or services. Thus, HKFRS 15
introduces a model that applies to contracts with customers,
featuring a contract-based five-step analysis of transactions
to determine whether, how much and when revenue is
recognised. The five steps are as follows:

i) Identify the contract with the customer;
i) Identify the performance obligations in the contract;
i) Determine the transaction price;

iv) Allocate the transaction price to the performance
obligations; and

v)  Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a
performance obligation.

HKFRS 15 also introduces extensive qualitative and quantitative
disclosure requirements which aim to enable users of the
financial statements to understand the nature, amount,
timing and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows arising from
contracts with customers.

HKFRS 15 will supersede the current revenue recognition
guidance including HKAS 18 Revenue, HKAS 11 Construction
Contracts and the related Interpretations when it becomes
effective.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application
of HKFRS 15 in the future may have result in the identification
of separate performance obligations which could affect the
timing of the recognition of revenue. Certain costs incurred in
fulfilling a contract which are currently expensed may need to
be recognised as an asset under HKFRS 15. More disclosures
relating to revenue are also required. However, it is not
practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of the effect of
HKFRS 15 until a detail review is completed.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RR MR

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRS(s)") (Continued)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet
effective (Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases

HKFRS 16 provides a comprehensive model for the
identification of lease arrangements and their treatment in the
financial statements of both lessors and lessees.

In respect of the lessee accounting, the standard introduces a
single lessee accounting model, requiring lessees to recognise
assets and liabilities for all leases with the lease term of more
than 12 months, unless the underlying asset has a low value.

At the commencement date of the lease, the lessee is required
to recognise a right-of-use asset at cost, which consists of
the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability,
plus any lease payments made to the lessor at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives received, the
initial estimate of restoration costs and any initial direct costs
incurred by the lessee. A lease liability is initially recognised at
the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at
that date.

Subsequently, the right-of-use asset is measured at cost
less any accumulated depreciation and any accumulated
impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of
the lease liability. Lease liability is subsequently measured by
increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease
liability, reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease
payment made, and remeasuring the carrying amount to reflect
any reassessment or lease modifications or to reflect revised in-
substance fixed lease payments. Depreciation and impairment
expenses, if any, on the right-of-use asset will be charged to
profit or loss following the requirements of HKAS 16 Property,
Plant and Equipment, while interest accrual on lease liability
will be charged to profit or loss.

In respect of the lessor accounting, HKFRS 16 substantially
carries forward the lessor accounting requirements in HKAS 17.
Accordingly, a lessor continues to classify its leases as operating
leases or finance leases, and to account for those two types of
leases differently.

HKFRS 16 will supersede the current lease standards including
HKAS 17 Leases and the related Interpretations when it
becomes effective.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RR MR

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRS(s)") (Continued)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet
effective (Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

HKFRS 16 will be effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2019 with early application permitted provided
that the entity has applied HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts
with Customers at or before the date of initial application
of HKFRS 16. As at 31 March 2017, the Group has non-
cancellable operating lease commitments of HK$4,634,000 as
disclosed in note 30. A preliminary assessment indicates that
these arrangements will meet the definition of a lease under
HKFRS 16, and hence the Group will recognise a right-of-use
asset and a corresponding liability in respect of all these leases
unless they qualify for low value or short-term leases upon
the application of HKFRS 16. In addition, the application of
new requirements may result changes in the measurement,
presentation and disclosure as indicated above. However, it is
not practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of the effect
until the Group performs a detailed review.

Amendments to HKAS 7 Disclosure Initiative

The amendments require entities to provide disclosures that
enable users of financial statements to evaluate changes
in liabilities arising from financing activities, including both
changes arising from cash flows and non-cash changes. The
amendments do not prescribe a specific method to fulfill the
new disclosure requirements. However, the amendments
indicate that one way is to provide a reconciliation between
the opening and closing balances for liabilities arising from
financing activities.

Amendments to HKAS 7 will become effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017 with early
application permitted.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application
of Amendments to HKAS 7 will result in additional disclosures
on the Group’s financing activities, especially reconciliation
between the opening and closing balances in the consolidated
statement of financial position for liabilities arising from
financing activities will be provided on application.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RR MR

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. EREFBER

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Listing Rules”) and
by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants in the principal (or most advantageous)
market at the measurement date under current market
conditions (i.e. an exit price) regardless of whether that price
is directly observable or estimated using another valuation
technique. Details of fair value measurement are explained in
the accounting policies set out below.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the
Company (i.e. its subsidiaries). If a subsidiary prepares its
financial statements using accounting policies other than
those adopted in the consolidated financial statements for like
transactions and events in similar circumstances, appropriate
adjustments are made to that subsidiary’s financial statements
in preparing the consolidated financial statements to ensure
conformity with the group’s accounting policies.

Control is achieved where the Group has: (i) the power over
the investee; (ii) exposure, or rights, to variable returns from
its involvement with the investee; and (iii) the ability to use its
power over the investee to affect the amount of the Group's
returns.

The Company reassess whether it controls an investee if facts
and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or
more of these elements of control stated above.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RR MR

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control of the subsidiary and cease when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary.

Income and expenses of subsidiaries are included in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income from the date the Group gains control
until the date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income of subsidiaries are attributed to the owners of
the Company and to the non-controlling interests. Total
comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed to the
owners of the Company and to the non-controlling interests
even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a
deficit balance.

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of
the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Changes in the Group's ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries that do not result in the Group losing control
over the subsidiaries are accounted for as equity transactions.
The carrying amounts of the Group’s interests and the non-
controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in their
relative interests in the subsidiaries. Any difference between
the amount by which the non-controlling interests are adjusted
and the fair value of the consideration paid or received is
recognised directly in equity and attributed to owners of the
Company.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RR MR

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Changes in the Group's ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries (Continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it (i)
derecognises the assets (including any goodwill) and liabilities
of the subsidiary at their carrying amounts at the date
when control is lost, (ii) derecognises the carrying amount
of any non-controlling interests in the former subsidiary at
the date when control is lost (including any components of
other comprehensive income attributable to them), and (iii)
recognises the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
received and the fair value of any retained interest, with any
resulting difference being recognised as a gain or loss in profit
or loss attributable to the Group. When assets and liabilities
of the subsidiary are carried at revalued amounts or fair values
and the related cumulative gain or loss has been recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity,
the amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity are accounted for as if the
Group had directly disposed of the related assets and liabilities
(i.e. reclassified to profit or loss or transferred directly to
retained earnings as specified by applicable HKFRSs). The fair
value of any investment retained in the former subsidiary at
the date when control is lost is regarded as the fair value on
initial recognition for subsequent accounting under HKAS 39
Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement or, when
applicable, the cost on initial recognition of an investment in an
associate or a joint venture.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. EREFBER@®)
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(Continued)

Merger accounting for business combination
involving entities under common control

The consolidated financial statements incorporates the financial
statements items of the combining entities or businesses in
which the common control combination occurs as if they had
been combined from the date when the combining entities
or businesses first came under the control of the Controlling
Shareholders.

The net assets of the combining entities or businesses
are consolidated using the existing book values from the
Controlling Shareholders’ perspective. No amount is recognised
in respect of goodwill or excess of acquirer’s interest in
the net fair value of acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities
and contingent liabilities over cost at the time of common
control combination, to the extent of the continuation of the
Controlling Shareholders’ interest.

The consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income includes the results of each of the
combining entities or businesses from the earliest date
presented or since the date when the combining entities or
businesses first came under the common control, where this is
a shorter period, regardless of the date of the common control
combination.

The comparative amounts in the consolidated financial
statements are presented as if the entities or businesses had
been combined at the end of the previous reporting period
unless the combining entities or businesses first came under
common control at a later date.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable for services rendered in the normal
course of business.

Revenue recognition for construction contracts in relation to
building construction, upgrade services of the infrastructure
and foundation works included in the segment of alteration,
renovation, upgrading and fitting out works is set out in the
section headed “Construction contracts” below.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RR MR

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. EREFBER@®)

(Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Rental income from operating lease is recognised in profit or
loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company
and the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest
income from financial asset is accrued on a time basis, by
reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective
interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts
the estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of
the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial
recognition.

Construction contracts

Where the outcome of a construction contract including
construction or upgrade services of the infrastructure under
a service concession arrangement can be estimated reliably,
revenue and costs are recognised by reference to the stage of
completion of the contract activity at the end of the reporting
period, measured based on the proportion that contract
costs incurred for work performed to date relative to the
estimated total contract costs, except where this would not
be representative of the stage of completion. Variations in
contract work, claims and incentive payments are included to
the extent that the amount can be measured reliably and its
receipt is considered probable.

Where the outcome of a construction contract cannot be
estimated reliably, contract revenue is recognised to the extent
of contract costs incurred that it is probable will be recoverable.
Contract costs are recognised as expenses in the period in
which they are incurred.

When it is probable that total contract costs will exceed total
contract revenue, the expected loss is recognised as an expense
immediately.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RR MR

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Construction contracts (Continued)

Where contract costs incurred to date plus recognised profits
less recognised losses exceed progress billings, the surplus is
shown as amounts due from customers for contract work.
For contracts where progress billings exceed contract costs
incurred to date plus recognised profits less recognised losses,
the surplus is shown as amounts due to customers for contract
work. Amounts received before the related work is performed
are included in the consolidated statement of financial position
as a liability, as advances received. Amounts billed for work
performed but not yet paid by the customer are included in the
consolidated statement of financial position under trade and
retention receivables.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

The Group as lessor
Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit or
loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.

The Group as lessee

Assets held under finance leases are recognised as assets of
the Group at their fair value at the inception of the lease or, if
lower, at the present value of the minimum lease payments.
The corresponding liability to the lessor is included in the
consolidated statements of financial position as a finance lease
obligation.

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense
on a straight-line basis over the lease term, except where
another systematic basis is more representative of the time
pattern in which economic benefits from the leased asset are
consumed. Contingent rentals arising under operating leases
are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are
incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RR MR

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leasing (Continued)

The Group as lessee (Continued)

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter into
operating leases, such incentives are recognised as a liability.
The aggregate benefit of incentives is recognised as a reduction
of rental expense on a straight-line basis, except where another
systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in
which economic benefits from the leased asset are consumed.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition or
construction of qualifying assets, which are assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for
their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets
until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions
attaching to them and that the grants will be received.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation for
expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose of giving
immediate financial support to the Group with no future
related costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they become receivable.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RR MR

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Retirement benefits costs

Payments to the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“MPF
Scheme") are recognised as an expense when employees have
rendered service entitling them to the contributions.

Short-term and other long-term employee benefits
A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees in
respect of salaries, annual leave and sick leave in the period the
related service is rendered at the undiscounted amount of the
benefits expected to be paid in exchange for that service.

Liabilities recognised in respect of short-term employee benefits
are measured at the undiscounted amount of the benefits
expected to be paid in exchange for the related service.

Liabilities recognised in respect of other long-term employee
benefits are measured at the present value of the estimated
future cash outflows expected to be made by the Group in
respect of services provided by employees up to the reporting
date.

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from “profit before taxation” as
reported in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income because of income or expense
that are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are
never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current
tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of each reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RR MR

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax base used in
the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible
temporary difference to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profits will be available against which those deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities
are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from the
initial recognition of other assets and liabilities in a transaction
that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will
not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising
from deductible temporary differences associated with such
investments and interests are only recognised to the extent that
it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits against
which to utilise the benefits of the temporary differences and
they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is
settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
each reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of each reporting period,
to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and
liabilities.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RR MR

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Plant and equipment

Plant and equipment are stated in the consolidated statement
of financial position at cost less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to allocate the cost of items
of plant and equipment over their estimated useful lives,
using the straight-line method. The estimated useful lives and
depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted
for on a prospective basis.

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over their
expected useful lives on the same basis as owned assets.
However, when there is no reasonable certainty that ownership
will be obtained by the end of the lease term, assets are
depreciated over the shorter of the lease term and their useful
lives.

An item of plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal
or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise
from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on
the disposal or retirement of an item of plant and equipment is
determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and
the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or
loss.

Cash and cash equivalents

Bank balances and cash in the consolidated statement of
financial position comprise cash at banks and on hand and
short-term deposits with a maturity of three months or less.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents consist of bank balances and cash, as
defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RR MR

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Investments in subsidiaries

Investments in subsidiaries are stated on the statement of
financial position of the Company at cost less accumulated
impairment loss.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position when a group
entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at cost. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities are
added to or deducted from the cost of the financial assets or
financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.

Financial assets

The Group's financial assets are classified into loans, receivables
and available-for-sale financial assets. The classification
depends on the nature and purpose of the financial assets
and is determined at the time of initial recognition. All regular
way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and
derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases
or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the time frame established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees paid or received that form an integral part
of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the debt
instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter period to the net
carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for
debt instruments.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RR MR

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. EREFBER@®)

84

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an
active market. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and
receivables (including trade and retention receivables, deposits
and other receivables, pledged bank deposits and bank
balances and cash) are measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less any identified impairment loss
(see accounting policy on impairment loss on financial assets
below).

Available-for-sales investment

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are
either designated as available-for-sale or are not classified as
financial assets at fair value through profit and loss (“FVTPL"),
loans and receivables or held-to-maturity investments. The
Group designated the non-interests bearing debenture as
available-for-sale financial assets on initial recognition of those
items.

Dividends on available-for-sale equity instruments are
recognised in profit or loss when the Group's right to receive
the dividends is established.

Available-for-sale equity investments that do not have a quoted
market price in an active market and whose fair value cannot
be reliably measured and derivatives that are linked to and must
be settled by delivery of such unquoted equity investments
are measured at cost less any identified impairment losses at
the end of each reporting period (see the accounting policy in
respect of impairment loss on financial assets below).

Impairment loss on financial assets

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment at the
end of each reporting period. Financial assets are considered to
be impaired when there is objective evidence that, as a result
of one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition
of the financial asset, the estimated future cash flows of the
financial assets have been affected.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RR MR

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment loss on financial assets (Continued)

For an available-for-sale equity investment, a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of that investment below its
cost is considered to be objective evidence of impairment.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of impairment
could include:

e  significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty;
or

e  breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in
interest or principal payments; or

e it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation; or

e  disappearance of an active market for that financial asset
because of financial difficulties.

For certain categories of financial assets, such as trade and
retention receivables and other receivables, assets that are
assessed not to be impaired individually are, in addition,
assessed for impairment on a collective basis. Objective
evidence of impairment for a portfolio of receivables could
include the Group’s past experience of collecting payments, an
increase in the number of delayed payments in the portfolio
past the average credit period of 90 days, observable changes
in national or local economic conditions that correlate with
default on receivables.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RR MR

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment loss on financial assets (Continued)

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the
impairment loss recognised is the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future
cash flows discounted at the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the
impairment loss is measured as the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the estimated
future cash flows discounted at the current market rate of
return for a similar financial asset. Such impairment loss will
not be reversed in subsequent periods.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with
the exception of trade and retention receivables and other
receivables, where the carrying amount is reduced through the
use of an allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount
of the allowance account are recognised in profit or loss. When
a trade or retention receivable or other receivable is considered
uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance account.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are
credited to profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss decreases
and the decrease can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment loss was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through profit
or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the asset at
the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed what the
amortised cost would have been had the impairment not been
recognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RR MR

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment loss on financial assets (Continued)

Impairment losses on available-for-sale equity investments
will not be reversed through profit or loss. Any increase in fair
value subsequent to an impairment loss is recognised directly in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in investments
revaluation reserve. For available-for-sale debt investments,
impairment losses are subsequently reversed through profit
or loss if an increase in the fair value of the investment can be
objectively related to an event occurring after the recognition
of the impairment loss.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are
classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance
with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

The Group's financial liabilities are classified into other financial
liabilities.

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities including trade and retention payables,
accruals and other payables, bank borrowing and obligations
under finance leases are subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest method.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
through the expected life of the financial liability, or where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on
initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all
of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Group are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RR MR

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the
issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the holder for a
loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payment
when due in accordance with the original or modified terms of
a debt instrument. A financial guarantee contract issued by the
Group and not designated as at FVTPL is recognised initially at
its fair value less transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the issue of the financial guarantee contract. Subsequent to
initial recognition, the Group measures the financial guarantee
contract at the higher of: (i) the amount of obligation under
the contract, as determined in accordance with HKAS 37
Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets; and
(ii) the amount initially recognised less, when appropriate,
cumulative amortisation recognised in accordance with the
revenue recognition policy.

Derecognition

A financial asset is derecognised only when the contractual
rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it
transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of
the consideration received and receivable and the cumulative
gain or loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in investments revaluation reserve is
recognised in profit or loss.

A financial liability is derecognised when, and only when,
the Group's obligations are discharged, cancelled or expire.
The difference between the carrying amount of the financial
liability derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is
recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RR MR

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event,
it is probable that the Group will be required to settle that
obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount
of the obligation.

Provisions are measured at the best estimate of the
consideration required to settle the present obligation at the
end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and
uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When a provision is
measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present
obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those
cash flows (where the effect of the time value of money is
material). When some or all of the economic benefits required
to settle a provision are expected to be recovered from a third
party, a receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually
certain that reimbursement will be received and the amount of
the receivable can be measured reliably.

Impairment losses on tangible assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible assets to determine whether
there is any indication that those assets have suffered an
impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable
amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the
extent of the impairment loss, if any. When it is not possible
to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset,
the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit (“CGU") to which the asset belongs. When a
reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be identified,
corporate assets are also allocated to individual CGU, or
otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of CGUs for
which a reasonable and consistent allocation can be identified.
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e M RR MR

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Impairment losses on tangible assets (Continued)
Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset
for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been
adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a CGU) is estimated
to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of
the asset (or a CGU) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An
impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or the CGU) is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset (or the CGU) in prior years. A reversal
of an impairment loss is recognised as income immediately in
profit or loss.

Fair value measurement

When measuring fair value except for the Group’s share-based
payment transactions and leasing transactions, the Group takes
into account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into account when
pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the asset
in its highest and best use.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RR MR

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Fair value measurement (Continued)

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in
the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to
measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable
inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.
Specifically, the Group categorised the fair value measurements
into three levels, based on the characteristics of inputs, as
follow:

Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input
that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or
indirectly observable.

Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
unobservable.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group determines
whether transfer occur between levels of the fair value
hierarchy for assets and liabilities which are measured at fair
value on recurring basis by reviewing their respective fair value
measurement.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RR MR

5. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION 5. {AEFTEABRENEER)

92

UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which
are described in note 4, the directors of the Company are
required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
about the carrying amounts of assets, liabilities, revenue and
expenses reported and disclosures made in the consolidated
financial statements. The estimates and associated assumptions
are based on historical experience and other factors that are
considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision
and future periods if the revision affects both current and
future periods.

The followings are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of
the reporting period, that have a significant risk of resulting in
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year.

Accounting for construction contracts

The Group recognised amount due from (to) customers
for contract work, contract revenue, cost and profit of
a construction contract according to the management’s
estimation of the total outcome of the project as well as the
percentage of completion of construction works. For the
year ended 31 March 2017, the carrying amount of amount
due from (to) customers for contract work are approximately
HK$48,280,000 (2016: HK$11,829,000) and HK$567,000
(2016: HK$61,396,000) respectively. Notwithstanding that
the management reviews and revises the estimates of both
contract revenue and costs for the construction contract as
the contract progresses, the actual outcome of the contract
in terms of its total revenue and costs may be higher or lower
than the estimates and this will affect the revenue, cost and
profit recognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RR MR

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Long service payment obligation

The present value of the defined benefit obligations are
determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation
involves making various assumptions that may differ from
actual developments in the future. These include the
determination of the discount rate, future salary increases,
pre-retirement termination, involuntary termination, early
retirement, normal retirement, death and disability rate. Due
to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term
nature, a retirement benefit obligation is highly sensitive to
changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at
the end of each reporting periods.

The Company makes provision for lump sum payments
on cessation of employment in certain circumstances to
employees. The payments due are dependent on future events
and recent payment experience may not be indicative of future
payments. Any increase or decrease in the provision would
affect profit or loss in future years.

As at 31 March 2017, the carrying amount of the long service
payment obligations is approximately HK$233,000 (2016:
HK$544,000). Further details about the long service payment
obligations are set out in note 28.

Fair value of guarantee contracts

The directors of the Company use their judgement in selecting
an appropriate valuation technique for the guarantee contracts,
and assumption included the probability of default by the
specified counterparty extrapolated from the market-based
credit information.

As at 31 March 2017, the contingent liabilities from the
guarantees in respect of performance bonds in favor of the
Group's client is amounted to approximately HK$96,679,000
(2016: HK$69,636,000). Further details about the guarantee
contracts are set out in note 31.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RR MR

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Depreciation of plant and equipment

The Group depreciates the plant and equipment over their
estimated useful life and after taking into account of their
estimated residual values, using the straight line method. The
estimated useful life reflects the directors’ estimate of the
periods that the Group intends to derive future economic
benefits from the use of the Group’s plant and equipment. The
residual values reflect the directors’ estimated amount that the
Group would currently obtain from disposal of the assets, after
deducting the estimated costs of disposal, if the assets were
already of the age and in the condition expected at the end
of its useful life. As at 31 March 2017, the carrying value of
plant and equipment are approximately HK$54,330,000 (2016:
HK$69,983,000). No impairment has been recognised for both
years.

Impairment loss recognised in respect of trade and
retention receivables

The Group performs ongoing credit evaluations of its
customers and adjusts credit limits based on payment history
and the customer’s current credit-worthiness, as determined
by the review of their current credit information. The Group
continuously monitors collections and payments from its
customers and maintains a provision for estimated credit losses
based upon its historical experience and any specific customer
collection issues that it has been identified. Credit losses have
historically been within the Group’s expectations and the
Group will continue to monitor the collections from customers
and maintain an appropriate level of estimated credit losses.
As at 31 March 2017, the carrying amounts of trade and
retention receivables are approximately HK$133,706,000 (2016:
HK$154,998,000). There was no impairment loss recognised as
at 31 March 2017 and 2016.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RR MR

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the
Group will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to shareholders through the optimisation
of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy
remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of bank borrowing
disclosed in note 26, obligations under finance leases disclosed
in note 27, pledged bank deposit and bank balances and cash
disclosed in note 23, and equity attributable to the owners of
Group, comprising issued share capital and reserves.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure on
a semi-annual basis. As part of this review, the directors of the
Company consider the cost of capital and the risks associated
with each class of capital. Based on the recommendations of
the directors of the Company, the Group will balance its overall
capital structure through the payment of dividends, new share
issues and share buy-backs as well as the issue of new debt or
the redemption of existing debt.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
The Group’s major financial assets and liabilities include trade
and retention receivables, deposits and other receivables,
pledged bank deposit, bank balances and cash, trade and
retention payables, accruals and other payables, bank
borrowing and obligations under finance leases. Details of
these financial instruments are disclosed in respective notes.
The risks associated with these financial instruments included
credit risk, market risk (interest rate risk) and liquidity risk.
The policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out below.
The management manages and monitors these exposures to
ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and
effective manner.

Credit risk

As at 31 March 2017, the Group’s maximum exposure to
credit risk which will cause a financial loss to the Group due
to failure to discharge an obligation by the counterparties and
guarantees provided by the Group is arising from the carrying
amount of the respective recognised financial assets as stated
in the consolidated statement of financial position and the
amount of contingent liabilities in relation to guarantee issued
by the Group is disclosed in note 31.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of the
Group has delegated a team responsible for determination of
credit limits, credit approvals and other monitoring procedures
to ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover overdue
debts. In addition, the Group reviews the recoverable amount
of each individual trade debt at the end of the reporting
period to ensure that adequate impairment losses are made
for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the directors of the
Company consider that the Group's credit risk is significantly
reduced.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the
counterparties are banks with high credit ratings assigned by
international credit-rating agencies.

The Group has concentration of credit risk at 44% (2016: 29%)
and 85% and (2016: 68%) of the total trade and retention
receivables was due from the Group’s largest customer and the
five largest customers respectively.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RR MR

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

The Group's concentration of credit risk by geographical
locations is in Hong Kong, which accounted for 100% (2016:
100%) of the total trade and retention receivables as at 31
March 2017.

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk in relation
to fixed-rate pledged bank deposit and obligations under
finance leases (see notes 23 and 27 for details). The Company
currently does not have an interest rate hedging policy.
However, the management monitors interest rate exposure and
will consider other necessary action when significant interest
rate exposure is anticipated.

The Group is also exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in
relation to bank balances, variable-rate bank borrowing and
obligations under finance leases (see notes 26 and 27). It is the
Group's policy to keep its borrowing at floating rate of interests
so as to minimise the fair value interest rate risk.

The Group's exposures to interest rates on financial liabilities
are detailed in the liquidity risk management section of
this note. The Group cash flow interest rate risk is mainly
concentrated on the fluctuation of Hong Kong Interbank
Offered Rate (“HIBOR") and prime rate arising from the
Group’s Hong Kong dollar denominated borrowing.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on
the exposure to interest rates for non-derivative instruments
at the end of the reporting period. The analysis is prepared
assuming the financial instruments outstanding at the end of
the reporting period were outstanding for the whole year. A
100 basis point increase or decrease is used when reporting
interest rate risk internally to key management personnel
and represents management’s assessment of the reasonably
possible change in interest rates.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

If interest rates had been 100 basis points (2016: 100 basis
points) higher/lower and all other variables were held constant,
the Group's post-tax profit for the year ended 31 March
2017 would increase/decrease by approximately HK$544,000
(2016: HK$960,000). This is mainly attributable to the Group’s
exposure to interest rates on its pledged bank deposit, bank
balances, variable-rate bank borrowing and obligation under
finance leases.

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors
and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed
adequate by the management to finance the Group’s
operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash
flows. The management monitors the utilisation of bank
borrowing and obligations under finance leases and ensures
compliance with loan covenants.

As at 31 March 2017 and 2016, the Group had not breached
any of the covenant clauses of its obligations under borrowings
and finance leases (notes 26 and 27).

The following table details the Group’s remaining contractual
maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities. The table
has been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows
of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which the
Group can be required to pay. Specifically, bank borrowing
with a repayment on demand clause is included in the earliest
time band regardless of the probability of the bank choosing to
exercise its rights within one year after the reporting date. The
maturity dates for other non-derivative financial liabilities are
based on the agreed repayment dates. The table includes both
interest and principal cash flows. To the extent that interest
flows are floating rate, the undiscounted amount is derive from
interest rate curve at the end of the reporting period.
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e M RR MR

7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

EWMITHe)
BEEARESEEEREE(S)

(Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued) REEEEEE)
Total
Within 1 year undiscounted Carrying
Liquidity table orondemand 1to2years 2to5years  cash flows amount
R-FR% KR
REBEER ERE -Z@mE “ERE  HERELE REE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETR BETR BETR BETR BT
At 31 March 2017 #2017%35318
Trade and retention payables BoENTERENRES 45,257 - - 45,257 45,257
Accruals and other payables et EBR REMERFUR 13,461 - - 13,461 13,461
Bank borrowing (note i) ROEE() 1,778 - - 1,778 1,778
Obligations under finance leases BEREET 11,614 4,992 599 17,205 16,791
Guarantee contracts ERED 96,679 - - 96,679 -
168,789 4,992 599 174,380 71,281
At 31 March 2016 2016534318
Trade and retention payables BHERFERENRES 45216 - - 45216 45,216
Accruals and other payables B BERE N 11,601 - - 11,601 11,601
Obligations under finance leases WERERA 17,012 9,931 3311 30,254 29,327
Guarantee contracts ERAEYD 69,636 - - 69,636 -
143,465 9,931 3,311 156,707 86,144
Notes: Bia -

Bank borrowing with a repayment on demand clause is included
in the “within one year or on demand” time band in the above
maturity analysis. At 31 March 2017, the aggregate undiscounted
principal amount of this bank borrowing amounted to approximately
HK$1,778,000. Taking into account the Group’s financial position,
the directors of the Company do not believe that it is probable that
the bank will exercise its discretionary rights to demand immediate
repayment. The directors of the Company believe that the bank
borrowing will be repaid by 32 monthly instalments after the end of
the reporting period in accordance with the scheduled repayment
dates set out in the loan agreements. At that time, the aggregate
principal and interest cash outflows will amount to HK$1,856,000.

The amounts included above for variable interest rate instruments
for non-derivative financial liabilities are subject to change if changes
in variable interest rates differ to those estimates of interest rates
determined at the end of the reporting period.
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e M RR MR

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

The amounts included above for guarantee contracts are the
maximum amounts the Group could be required to settle
under the arrangement for the full guaranteed amount if that
amount is claimed by the counterparty to the guarantee. Based
on expectations at the end of the reporting period, the Group
considers that it is more likely than not that no amount will
be payable under the arrangement. However, this estimate
is subject to change depending on the probability of the
counterparty claiming under the guarantee which is a function
of the likelihood that the financial receivables held by the
counterparty which are guaranteed suffer credit losses.

Fair value measurement objective and policies

The fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities are
determined in accordance with generally accepted pricing
models based on discounted cash flow analysis using prices or
rates from observable current market transactions as input.

The directors of the Company consider that the carrying
amounts of financial assets, and financial liabilities recorded at
amortised cost in the financial statements approximate to their
fair values.

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
Information reported to the chief executive officer (“CEOQ"),
being the chief operating decision maker, for the purposes of
resource allocation and assessment of segment performance
focuses on types of services provided. The directors of
the Company have chosen to organise the Group around
differences in services. No operating segments identified by
the chief operating decision maker have been aggregated in
arriving at the reportable segments of the Group.

Specifically, the Group’s reportable segments are as follows:
1. Foundation and other civil works; and

2. Tunneling works.

EWMITHe)
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e M RR MR

8. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

(Continued)

8. WHERDIER @)

Segment revenues and results DEBUR IR I FE A
The following is an analysis of the Group's revenue and results REEIRAI 2 MR E D B ?-?J EI'J%
from continuing operations by reportable and operating BISEERWRE R EEDTTIAT
segment.
For the year ended 31 March 2017 BZE2017F3A31ALEE
Foundation
and other Tunneling
civil works works Total
HER
Ht+ AT BEIR st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT BT T
REVENUE &

External segment revenue SNER > BRI #R 298,143 200,135 498,278
Segment profit 2 EBER A 34,734 43,581 78,315
Unallocated income RO BEWA 2,526
Unallocated corporate expenses &7 Bt A aF X (52,362)
Finance costs BE KA (1,601)
Profit before taxation R A& F1 26,878
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e M RR MR

8. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)
Segment revenues and results (Continued)

For the year ended 31 March 2016

WERkoEHER @)
DEBUR S R A ()

HZE2016F3A31HILFE

Foundation
and other Tunneling
civil works works Total
HE
Hip EARTHE BT ig RET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BEETTT BT BT
REVENUE W=
External segment revenue HNER o BRI &R 414,714 289,679 704,393
Segment profit D ER A 118,974 54,478 173,452
Unallocated income FoBUWA 3,413
Unallocated corporate expenses &7 B2 A (62,193)
Finance costs BhE R (1,603)
Profit before taxation BR A A 113,069

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the
same as the Group's accounting policies described in note 4.
Segment profit represents the profit earned by each segment
without allocation of central administration costs, directors’
salaries, finance costs and other income and gain. This is the
measure reported to the CEO for the purposes of resource
allocation and performance assessment.

REDH R S ET R A 4R AR
SEEHBORAR - 2 ERMEED
MELEDEPRITHAAL EXH
T HETREKAREMKA RS
BB TR EREREE A - TS5 E
TERD IR KRB EMAITHRAE
2],WIE -
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e M RR MR

8. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 8.

(Continued)

Segment assets and liabilities

The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and liabilities
by reportable and operating segment:

s & 2 B E # ()

THEEREE
TEIJE$’EI&T WAL R El
DHEENBEDN

Segment assets DEEE
2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Foundation and other civil works Mo B R B AR T AR 141,040 112,001
Tunneling works BxiE A2 66,424 78,217
Total segment assets DEPEEMREE 207,464 190,218
Corporate and other unallocated assets ‘A &) M E AR DA EE 125,427 192,026
Total assets BERE 332,891 382,244
Segment liabilities oEMEE
2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BET T
Foundation and other civil works WENEMEARTE 47,830 42,471
Tunneling works BEiE T 12 7.815 77,882
Total segment liabilities DEEEET 55,645 120,353
Corporate and other unallocated NRAIREMRDEEE
liabilities 30,410 37,589
Total liabilities BERRE 86,055 157,942
For the purposes of monitoring segment performance and RERSHRBE LR D FESEEIR
allocating resources between segments. BEEmE -

1. All assets are allocated to operating segment, other than
unallocated plant and equipment, debentures, pledged
bank deposit, bank balances and cash, tax recoverable,
certain deposits, prepayments and other receivables and
deferred tax assets. Assets used jointly by reportable
segments are allocated on the basis of the revenues
earned by individual reportable segments; and

2. All liabilities are allocated to operating segments,
other than certain accrual and other payables, certain
obligations under finance leases, bank borrowing, tax
payable, long service payment obligations and deferred
tax liabilities. Liabilities for which reportable segments are
jointly liable are allocated in proportion to segment assets.
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e M RR MR

8. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 8. WmKkoEER )
(Continued)
Other segment information Hb o 2RER
Foundation
and other Tunneling
civil works works  Unallocated Total
HhE R HA
IARIR BEIR ROE st
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HKS$’ 000 HK$' 000

BETR BETR REETR BETT

Year ended 31 March 2017 BE201753A31BILFE
Amounts included in the BREETEDHRRR
measure of segment profitor S WEEMNEE
segment assets:
Depreciation e 19,569 5,017 4,784 29,370
Additions to non-current assets REFERBEE = = 14,165 14,165
Write off of a trade receivable HsHE SN EIR 142 = = 142
Loss on disposal of plant and HEMERRENES
equipment, net FE - - 170 170
Amounts regularly provided to EHi[E T ELLREE
the chief operating decision BHRETEEEHE
maker but not included inthe ~ S EEFIHLBEE
measure of segment profitor W& :
segment assets:
Interest income FEMA - - (521) (521)
Finance costs BEMKAK 896 278 427 1,601
Income tax expense FEBF X = = 4,344 4,344
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8. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

(Continued)

Other segment information (Continued)

8.

WERoEHER @)
Hib o IpaEe ()

Foundation
and other Tunneling
civil works works Unallocated Total
HE R At
tARIR B T2 RDE aEr
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT AETT BETT
Year ended 31 March 2016 BE201653A31BILFE
Amounts included in the BREETEDHRRR
measure of segment profit PMEENSE
or segment assets:
Depreciation nE 15,195 8,906 5,217 29,318
Additions to non-current assets REFNBEE 4,893 - 12,948 17,841
Write off of a trade receivable HsHE SN EIR 54 - - 54
Gain on disposal of plant and HE S KRB
equipment - - (162) (162)
Amounts regularly provided to EHi[E T ELLREE
the chief operating decision BHRETEEEHE
maker but not included in ABEARDHEE
the measure of segment HeE:
profit or segment assets:
Interest income FEMA - - (418) (418)
Finance costs BEXRA 542 - 1,061 1,603
Income tax expense FriEHif% - - 18,803 18,803
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8. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)

8.

Wz & 2 B E # ()

Information about major customers FEEFNESR
Revenue from customers of the corresponding year contributing MERFERAEBR AN A ERER
over 10% of the total revenue of the Group are as follows: 10%ME =M T
2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT T
Company A’ NI 234,172 325,743
Company B! A R]B! 123,651 84,107
Company C2 NREIC? N/A 83,893
TER

! Revenue from both foundation and other civil works and tunneling
works segments.

2 Revenue from foundation and other civil works segment. The revenue
was less than 10% during the year.

Geographical information

The Group is organised into two operating segments as
foundation and other civil works and tunneling works primarily
in Hong Kong and all revenue, expenses, assets and liabilities
and capital expenditures are predominantly attributable to
these two segments. Accordingly, no segment analysis by
geographical information is presented.

! REMEREM T ARTED I REEE
oW

2 REMEREM AR T2 EHUEE
FANBRAREER10% °

HIBER
AEETBEBETZEHMALE D
Blxth 2 K HoAth +- /R TR DA R B8 T 12
R MATAEWE B - BEEMA
BEREAATTFEREZMADE -
Et - Bt IR E R 251 5 EB AT o
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e M RR MR

9. OTHER INCOME AND GAIN 9. Htt AR z=

2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT T

Rental income from RE R AR
plant and equipment WA - 903
Government subsidy (Note) RATHEBh (B ez ) 242 752
Sales of scrap materials SHE R 1,169 613
Insurance claim RIRES(E 172 484
Bank interest income RITHBUA 521 418

Gain on disposal of plant and HE R MR

equipment Wz 98 162
Sundry income B 324 81
2,526 3,413

Note: The income represents government subsidy received under the
“Ex-gratia Payment Scheme for Phasing Out Pre-Euro IV Diesel
Commercial Vehicles” in 2017 and 2016 upon retirement of certain

Kret - WMASERE T IERERERE20174
K2 2016 4R [ 58 I Y8 )X 8% B2 70 H3 LA AT £
PR EE A B R SNRT

motor vehicles.
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10. FINANCE COSTS

10. & KA

2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Interest on: FE
performance bonds, bank overdraft and B#VRK « RITEZ X
bank borrowing RITEE 905 642
obligations under finance leases BMERERT 696 961
1,601 1,603
11. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 1. FTiEHBx
2017 2016
HK$’'000 HK$'000
BET T BT
Current year taxation REERIA
Hong Kong Profits Tax BBNEB 5,646 18,876
Under (over)-provision in prior years: TERET 2 GBREE)
Hong Kong Profits Tax BBNEB 85 (814)
Deferred taxation (note 19) IRIERIIA (M52 19) (1,387) 741
4,344 18,803

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the estimated
assessable profit for both years.

The charge for the year to Hong Kong Profits Tax has been
relieved by approximately HK$1,835,000 for the year ended
31 March 2016 (2017: nil) as a result of tax losses brought
forward from previous years.

HAEFER - EBFIEH T B
FERRBE R F116.5% S SATS -

HRBBEEEATEFEE  HEe
2016 F3A31BIEFENFETEH
BF X H 2 R e 4975 51,835,000 7T

(20174 - f&®) -
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11. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)
The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit
before taxation per the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income as follows:

1. FTEHREX @

AFEHARG AR LR
ARFEBBATATIL R -

2017 2016

HK$'000 HK$'000

BETT ERET T

Profit before taxation BB A A A 26,878 113,069
Tax calculated at the domestic income 1R E TSI & 16.5%tE

tax rate of 16.5% O] 4,435 18,656
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax  Fif§ 7 EIH BRI A 2 7

purposes SR B (162) (22)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible ~ F{F§ 77 AN AT HE S 2 ¢

for tax purposes BRE 26 1,063
Under (over) — provision in prior years B FEBEENC, (BE)

Bt 85 (814)

Effect of tax exemption granted (Note) ~ BERTB TR 2 88 (F1:F) (40) (80)

Income tax expense for the year REE 2 FERMZ 4,344 18,803

Note: Tax exemption represents a reduction of Hong Kong Profits Tax for
the years of assessments 2015/16 and 2016/2017 by 75%, subject to

a ceiling of HK$20,000.

Annual Report 2016/17 Ff

Bfat - F %5 # % B R 2015 F /2016 6 K
2016 F 2017 F R FEENBRT5% BB
FIBH - _EBRAER20,0007T °

109



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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12. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 12. FE & F
Profit for the year has been arrived at after charging: FERFTHEHR TS IRER
2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT TT
Staff costs ST
— Salaries and other benefits —FHe MEMET 127,831 134,798
— Retirement benefit scheme —RIREFIFT BN
contributions 6,068 6,084

Total staff costs (excluding Directors’ B TN (ESMEERIN

remuneration (note 13)) (B17£13)) 133,899 140,882
Auditor’s remuneration ZE A & 600 600
Write off of a trade receivable i3 5 2 e R IE 142 54
Depreciation of plant and equipment  #2S R&EITE 29,370 29,318
Loss (gain) on disposal of plant and MRS MR

equipment, net EE () - FE 170 (162)
Minimum lease payment under operating & # 7| & BR&KEHE &

leases in respect of: ERERK

— office premises, site offices and —WRE - HBRRAE

storage area TN 3,741 3,796

— machineries — 1 5,609 23,748

9,350 27,544
Net foreign exchange losses SNE B IR FEE = 98
Listing expenses WX - 5,712
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13. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 13. EERITHARETM

EMOLUMENTS

The emoluments paid or payable to each of the seven (2016:
seven) directors and the CEO of the Company were as follows:

ENRENARRA LA (20165 : £
) ERRITBHEEFMAT -

Year ended 31 March 2017 BZE2017F3A31ALFE
Executive
directors
and chief
executive

Executive directors HESR Independent non-executive directors
#ngs e BUFHTES

Mr.

Mr. Wong Chi

Mr. Leung Hung Mr. Mr. Keung,

Jim Yin Kwan, Mr. Kwong, Mr.  Lee Luk Shiu  Yu Hon Kwan Johnny

Jackin - Chui Mo Ming Derrick  Yan Chi Tat (Note ) (Note i) (Note i) Total

BRRRE REMRE  RERRE  ERERE
HKS000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS'000
BRI ERTr BRTR ERTR

FRERE  REMRE ISMRE
(W) (W) (K it
HKS000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS'000
ERTT  ERTR EWTR BT

Emoluments paid or receivable  StEEATIALE]
in respect of a person’s FEMBLETR
services as a director, EEREd
whether of the Companyor ~ Z

its subsidiary undertaking
Fees ik - - - - 240 240 240 720
Other emoluments; EoEm

Salaries e 2,112 1,49 1,138 1,09 - - - 5,838

Discretionary bonus Mg 126 9% 48 ] - - - 32

Retirement benefit scheme ~ RIRERIETEIA

contributions 94 15 4 64 - - - 280

Total a5t 2332 1,664 1233 1,251 240 240 240 7,200
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RETKHKRMET
13. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’'S 13. EERITHARTM =)
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)
Year ended 31 March 2016 B ZE20165F3A31BILFE
Executive
directors
and chief
executive
Executive directors HIEER Independent non-executive directors
0ES s BUiES
Mr.
Mr. Wong Chi
Mr. Leung Hung Mr. Mr. Keung,
Jim Yin Kwan, Mr. Kwong, Mr. LeeLuk Shiu  YuHon Kwan Johnny
Jackin -~ Chui Mo Ming Derrick ~ Yan ChiTat (Note j (Note (Note i) Total

FRALE  RBMRE  IERAA
BARELY  HRMRE  RbRRT  EEERE ) ) (@) &
HKS000  HKS000  HKFOOD  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS000  HK$'000
¥t ARTn BBt A%Tn BWTr A%t BT BB

Emoluments paid or receivable  StEEATIVAALE]
in respect of  person’s FEMBLETR
services as a director, EERET
whether of the Companyor ~ E

its subsidiary undertaking
Fees ik - - - - 69 69 69 207
Other emoluments: s

Salaries ¢ 2,112 1,494 1,115 1072 - - - 5,793

Discretionary bonus Mg 500 500 400 500 - - - 1,900

Retirement benefit scheme R IRERIETEI A

contributions 94 75 46 63 - - - 218

Total @t 2,706 2,069 1,561 1,635 69 69 69 8,178
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13. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 13. EERITHARETFM =)
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)
Notes: Bt -
()  Appointed on 25 November 2015. () H2015F 11 A25HEEZT -

14.

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

The discretionary bonus is based on the individual performance of
the directors and the Group's performance and profitability and the
prevailing market conditions.

The non-interest bearing debenture issued by International Christian
School with principal amount of HK$1,000,000 was purchased for the
benefit of Mr. Jim Yin Kwan, Jackin’s child and would be refunded
upon the graduation of the director’s child (note 18).

Mr. Yan Chi Tat is also the CEO of the Company and his emoluments
disclosed above include those for services rendered by him as the
chief executive.

Neither the CEO nor any of the directors waived any emoluments for
both years.

No emoluments were paid by the Group to any directors and CEO of
the Company as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office for both years.

INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST
EMOLUMENTS

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the
Group, four (2016: four) of them were directors including the
CEO of the Company whose emoluments are included in note
13 above. The emoluments of the remaining one (2016: one)
individual were as follows:

14.

(i)  BBEADREES ZEAARRRAE
Bz RBARBNEN RERTRETE

(i) BEBREBERMETRSEAESE
1,000,000 K R B EH BERE A
MFZMFEMBE  WERZESMN
FRBERTIURE(HFE18) ©

(iv) BFELRETRARAOITHAE @ &
R EXEEOHFIERBRERERITR
ABPTRH A ZE RS -

v RWMEFERN  HETHRASREMNE
BEREEABS o

(vi)y PEWEFER  ARELEEAAXEE
AE S RITRABES I ERB S ES N
AREBHRINAAE B8 SR AE R
BRI

RE M AL

AEBRESZESHFMALS - EFM
A(2016%F : TUA) BARFIESR(H
BOREER)  HENTHERER L
SHHEE13 o Fgp—H AL (20164 -
—AN)HEMT -

2017 2016

HK$'000 HK$'000

BT T BT

Salaries, allowances and other benefits &4 - 288 R HMEF 897 904
Contributions to retirement benefits RIREFIFT B R

scheme 51 49

948 953
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14. INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST 14. EEHMA L @
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)
His emoluments were within the following band BEAM SN T A TEE
2017 2016
No. of employees No. of employees
EE®E EE#E
Nil to HK$1,000,000 T =% 1,000,0007T 1 1
15. DIVIDENDS 15. K&
2017 2016
HK$"000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Interim dividends recognised as RAFER R
distribution during the year FHARR B IR - 127,200
During the year ended 31 March 2016, the Company paid REZE2016F3A31HILEE AR
interim dividend of HK$102,000,000 (HK$102,000 per share). A)R A HA % 2% 102,000,000 7T
In addition, interim dividends of HK$18,000,000 (HK$18,000 (A& E%¥102,0007T) © AN - FREAAR
per share) and HK$7,200,000 (HK$7,200 per share) were paid B8 #18,000,0007T (& BB ¥ 18,000
by subsidiaries, Yee Hop Construction Company Limited (“Yee 70 ) N 7% # 7,200,000 7T (& & B &
Hop Construction”) and Y.H. Foundations Limited (“Y.H. 7,20070) TR EB AR EEERERR
Foundations”), to their then shareholders respectively, prior to NEl([REEEDREGHWEBRA
the completion of the Reorganisation in August 2015. A([&ZEHE])N2015F8 A EHT

FX AT 23 Bl T L B BRI AT

During the year ended 31 March 2017, no interim and final HZE2017F3A318LEFE - BiER
dividend was proposed or paid. No dividend has been proposed sk B H KRR S - BMEHR
since the end of the reporting period. iR EEREARE o
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16. EARNINGS PER SHARE 16. BRAF
The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share KRRRHEB ANEEHERARREE
attributable to the owners of the Company is based on the AR TIRE T EETE -

following data:

2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BB T
Earnings B F
Earnings for the purpose of basic ARETE SR
earnings per share BEREF 2T 22,534 94,294
‘000 ‘000
T TFh&
Number of shares ROEE
Weighted average number of ordinary ~ AR T EEREARZF
shares for the purpose of basic opiE: B e kg ol
earnings per share (Note) 2B (HiE) 500,000 407,712
Note: The weighted average number of shares for the purpose of basic Bfat - BZE2016F3A31BIEFE - ARG
earnings per share for the year ended 31 March 2016 have been BEREREFE MNETF RGO EE
retrospectively adjusted for the effects of capitalisation of the ordinary EEBPFAE  UARBAEZE201653
shares of the Company which took place during the years ended 31 R31BIEFEBETREREARRAR
March 2016 as part of the reorganisation for the preparation for the BHEmELREE—FDHARTE
listing of Company’s shares. BREMOBEITHRE -
The dilutive earnings per share is equal to the basic earnings HRREE2017F &20165F3 318 1
per share as there were no dilutive potential ordinary shares FEWETALBEENNRITEL
outstanding during the years ended 31 March 2017 and 2016. AR - BREFRNENRERELRR

o
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17. PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

17. BB R RE

Leasehold Machinery and Motor
improvement equipment vehicles Total
HENERE BERRE RE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BT BETT
COoST A
At 1 April 2015 7201554 A18 873 144,678 16,783 162,334
Additions NE 757 10,620 6,464 17,841
Disposals HE - - (1,652) (1,652)
At 31 March 2016 and 1 April 2016 722016%3A31H K
201654718 1,630 155,298 21,595 178,523
Additions NE - 7,227 6,938 14,165
Disposals HeE - (143) (1,924) (2,067)
At 31 March 2017 F201783R31H 1,630 162,382 26,609 190,621
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION Rt
At 1 April 2015 12015F4R18 873 72,892 7,109 80,874
Charge for the year FREA 114 26,148 3,056 29,318
Eliminated on disposals HER - - (1,652) (1,652)
At 31 March 2016 and 1 April 2016~ #201643 4318 %
201654718 987 99,040 8,513 108,540
Charge for the year FREA 227 25,020 4123 29,370
Eliminated on disposals R - (143) (1,476) (1,619
At 31 March 2017 F201763A318 1214 123,917 11,160 136,291
NET CARRYING VALUES RETE
At 31 March 2017 72017%3A31H 416 38,465 15,449 54,330
At 31 March 2016 FA20163A318 643 56,258 13,082 69,983

Plant and equipment are depreciated on a straight-line basis on

the following basis:

e MR B IRA T EERAERE
IE -

Leasehold improvement Over the shorter of the term of HEMEEE RHEFHN=F
lease or 3 years ZEREE

Machinery and equipment 20% per annum HeE R AR HFF20%

Motor vehicles 20% per annum E HF20%
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17. PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued) 17. HIB|RRE(#)
The carrying values of plant and equipment held under finance NRIEHEEF AR ERERENERT
leases were as follows: BHT

2017 2016

HK$'000 HK$'000

BT T BT

Machinery and equipment e 15,251 33,501

Motor vehicles bt 10,803 10,727
26,054 44,228

18. DEBENTURES 18. &%

2017 2016

HK$'000 HK$'000

BT T BT T

Unlisted debt security K EMEBZFES 1,000 1,000

Club debenture, at cost BLEERES AR 460 460

1,460 1,460
The debt security represented non-interest bearing debenture BB AEEBHERERTEITAR
issued by International Christian School with principal amount &% A7811,000,000TH 2 BES -
of HK$1,000,000. The debenture was purchased for the ZEFRE A AEENFLNNEM
benefit of a director’s child and would be refunded upon the BT W ZEENFREELET
graduation of the director’s child. The investment is measured LURIE o SZIBIR B ARRERTE °

at cost less impairment.

The club debenture represents club membership in a private B E AR B — R ABLEIY
club in Hong Kong. The directors of the Company consider B @ss o KANRIEEREEEW
no impairment identified with reference to the second hand EHAR - WHERZE%EEA —Fm
market price of the club debenture as at the end of the B EREZRE -

reporting period.
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19. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS (LIABILITIES) 19. BEFEHREE(AE)
The following is the analysis of the deferred tax assets (liabilities), LT RIEBELEMSHEE(BE)REH
after set off certain deferred tax assets against deferred AETEEHREEHHERBEEED
liabilities of the same taxable entity, for the financial reporting EIEBERODN - LAEE A EHR
purposes: ERE®
2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BETIT
Deferred tax assets RIETRIEE E 568 -
Deferred tax liabilities RIEFTERRaE (6,850) (7,669)
(6,282) (7,669)
The following are the major deferred tax assets (liabilities) RAEELBEEE  EBIANTE
recognised and movements thereon during the current and EIEFEMEE(AB)RESFHINT
prior years:

Accelerated

tax
depreciation Tax losses Total
IEBLIEITE BRIAEE FEEG]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000
BT T BETT BT
At 1 April 2015 201564 H1H (8,872) 1,944 (6,928)
Credited (charged) to STA(ORRE ) B
profit or loss (note 11) (HiaF11) 1,203 (1,944) (741)
At 31 March 2016 and 1 April 7201653 H318 &
2016 2016F4H1H (7,669) - (7,669)
Credited to profit or loss st AE=m (M)
(note 11) 819 568 1,387
At 31 March 2017 7201753 A31H (6,850) 568 (6,282)
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20. TRADE AND RETENTION RECEIVABLES

The following is an analysis of trade and retention receivables

20. EZEWFER EWRE S
2R IR © E 5 eI R E R FE IR

at the end of each reporting period: REISHDTAT :

2017 2016

HK$'000 HK$'000

BT T BT IT

Trade receivables 2 S EWKIE 70,393 107,002

Retention receivables (Note) FEWRE ® (Ha2) 63,313 47,996

Trade and retention receivables E 5 WA M ERRE S 133,706 154,998
Note: Except for the amounts of approximately HK$24,113,000 (2016: izt - Be A A B 124,113,000 (2016

HK$18,065,000) which were expected to be recovered or settled after
one year, all of the remaining balances are expected to be recovered
within one year. Retention receivables are included in current assets as
the Group expects to realise these within its normal operating cycle.
No impairment loss has been provided as these retention receivables
relate to a wide range of customers for whom there was no recent

history of default.

The Group does not hold any collateral over these balances.

The Group does not have a standardised and universal credit
period granted to its customers, and the credit period of
individual customer is considered on a case-by-case basis and
stipulated in the project contract, as appropriate. The following
is an aged analysis of trade receivables, presented based on the
certified report which approximates revenue recognition date

O
on °

£ 818,065,000 ) FEET —F 1

GEAEETC R

PRA 8T IR

AR—FRRE - dRAEEFREHR

H-RpaEBRERZEREIRES -

BEBRES T ARBEE - AN
HRWRE S EA RN RILEELD
IR EP AR - MO EFHRBUER

1BRE -

ZN-SE T3l

AEEBERE
HEE - ERlZF a1
EREZERRER AT RE(NE
) - REBEZERS AR KRR
HIHENZERE 27 WE SRR
R AR E D AT (F0ER B FERR RO BLE &

FRIT A A

ERNEEHMRT
TR 2

at the end of each reporting period, and net of impairment loss BT :
recognised:

2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BETT
0 to 30 days 0Z=30H 25,859 46,651
31 to 60 days 31£60H 40,794 28,065
61 to 90 days 61290H 3,698 19,218
91 to 180 days 91£2180H - 12,375
181 to 365 days 1812365H = 693
Over 365 days 365H M E 42 -
70,393 107,002
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20. TRADE AND RETENTION RECEIVABLES 20. EZEWFER EWRE S

(Continued)

Included in the Group'’s trade receivable balances were debtors
with aggregate carrying amount of approximately HK$42,000
(2016: HK$13,068,000) which were past due at the end of
the reporting period for which the Group has not provided
for impairment loss. Based on past experience, management
believes that no impairment allowance is necessary in respect
of balances past due but not impaired as there has not been
a significant change in credit quality and the balances are still
considered fully recoverable.

The aged analysis of trade receivable that were past due but
not impaired are as follows:

(%8)

AEEBZRRFBLEHBIEER
ABREBEL BB 42,0007T(2016
F ¢ 5113,068,0007T) © EgR ke
HiR@ AR - MAEELE AR
BEEE ERBELE  EEERE
A E B BERBENEHRIED R
BEE REAEEERUELRE
A - MBBEHRDERE A2
e o

BEEE W RRENE 5 EWRZER
BT

120

2017 2016

HK$'000 HK$'000

BT T BT T

1 to 90 days 1£90H - 12,375
91 to 180 days 91£180H = 693
Over 365 days H#iE365H 42 -
42 13,068

The directors of the Company consider that there has not been
a significant change in credit quality of the trade receivables
and there is no recent history of default, therefore the amounts
are considered recoverable.

During the year, the Group has written off a trade receivable
amount of HK$142,000 (2016: HK$54,000) that is considered
not to be recoverable.

ARREERRESHRYGENEER
BRUENRNERES - 1LY
BIERFIARE AR ASBERTHE
AR -

RAFE  AEECME-FRER

AT Bl B 5 e GRTE A #5142,000
JC(20164F : B#54,0007T) °
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21. AMOUNTS DUE FROM (TO) CUSTOMERS 21. BEWW(EMBEFEHNIRER
FOR CONTRACT WORK 18

2017 2016

HK$’'000 HK$'000

T T ST IT

Contracts in progress at the end of REH/EHANEREHN
each reporting period:

Contract costs incurred plus BEASHNAINE ERR

recognised profits less recognised R B RS E

losses 2,524,946 2,286,010
Less: progress billings B EENR (2,477,233) (2,335,577)

Amounts due from (to) customers for  JEU (FERN) B & 4TI
contract work A 47,713 (49,567)

Analysed for reporting purpose as: FHEBEMNMSoWWT -

Amounts due from customers for JEWEFA 4 TEFIE
contract work 48,280 11,829

Amounts due to customers for ENEFE4 TEFE
contract work (567) (61,396)
47,713 (49,567)
As at 31 March 2017, retentions held by customers for contract MR2017F3A31H BEERAHTIRE
work included in trade and retention receivables of the Group FEHNRESEEREASBEE S EW
amounted to HK$63,313,000 (2016: HK$47,996,000) (Note FRIE I FE AR [E € 45 63,313,0007T
20). (20164 : ##47,996,0007T ) (Kt 5%

20) °
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22.

DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES

The following is an analysis of deposits, prepayments and other
receivables at the end of each reporting period:

22

B ANREREMER

IR
REREHR 2 AAKERE
fEGRIBA DT

2017 2016

HK$'000 HK$'000

BT T BEET T

Deposits b7 6,322 4,610
Prepayments TERTFIE 6,362 440
Other receivables H b U FIE 3,941 4,338
16,625 9,388

23.

Included in other receivables are amount approximately
HK$2,494,000 (2016: HK$1,157,000) are placed with
certain insurance companies for the guarantees in respect of
performance bonds in favor of the Group’s customers. Details
refer to note 31.

PLEDGED BANK DEPOSIT AND BANK
BALANCES AND CASH

Pledged bank deposit

Pledged bank deposit represent deposit pledged to bank to
secure short-term banking facilities granted to the Group and is
therefore classified as current assets.

Pledged bank deposit carried fixed interest rate at 0.30% (2016:
0.30%) per annum.

Bank balances and cash

Bank balances earned interest at floating rates based on daily
bank deposit rates which range from 0% to 1.15% (2016: 0%
to 1.1%) per annum.

23.

HERRBEANBRESEN A
¥ 2,494,000 7T ( 2016 F : & ¥
1,157,00070) L E@%GE T RSB R
MBEANRHERGERE TREA
7] o FHIEE2EMIEE3T -

EEARITERRRITERR
EEE

BEMRITER

B AR PR 177 336 R 4R 1T 45 AR IA I R
BT A EENERRITREBEOE
o BT ARBEE -

BEFIRITERET FFE50.30%
(20164F : 0.30%) °

MITERRES

RITEHIBIES BIRTERN IR F
FFENTEFE0%E1.15% (2016
F0%E1.1%)BHEF S o
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24. TRADE AND RETENTION PAYABLES 2. EZ RN REREANRESE
The following is an analysis of trade and retention payables at RERSER - BHENRIBRER
the end of each reporting period: REISHDTAT :

2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Trade payables B S e FRIA 36,073 37,118
Retention payables (Note) ERRE S (M) 9,184 8,098
Trade and retention payable E S IR R EMRE S 45,257 45,216
Note: As at 31 March 2017, retention payables of approximately Bzt - B2017F3A318 @ ERRERLE
HK$3,586,000 (31 March 2016: HK$1,960,000) was expected to #3,586,0007T (2016 5F3 A31H : %
be paid or settled in more than twelve months from the end of the #1,960,0007T ) TEEAHG B T4 HAR R
reporting period. FPERT @A ARSI A -
The average credit period on purchases of goods is from 30 to HEEMNTIEEHA30E60H -
60 days. The Group has financial risk management policies in REE B HI 5] B 75 B & TR B SR LA TR
place to ensure that all payables are settled within the credit RETEENTERREEZENLGES o
timeframe. The following is the aged analysis of trade payables REREMR - BEHRNFIARESR
presented based on the invoice date at the end of the reporting AHETE MR DT T -
period:
2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
0 to 90 days 0Z290H 35,582 37,004
91 to 180 days 912180H 463 31
181 to 365 days 1812365H = 67
Over 365 days 365H A E 28 16
36,073 37,118
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25. ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES

25. FERT IR R HE BN FIR

2017 2016

HK$'000 HK$'000

BT T BT T

Accruals JEETE A 9,976 8,265
Provision for litigation claim (note) Eﬁ%&$%?¥1ﬁ(ﬁ/f§) 2,127 2,127
Other payables HAbFER TR 1,358 1,209
13,461 11,601

Note: A subsidiary has been named as a defendant in High Court actions
in respect of a dispute of the outstanding legal fee for amounts of
approximately HK$1,914,000 in 2014 respectively. Approximately
HK$2,127,000 provision for any potential liability has been made in
the consolidated financial statements. The case was still ongoing up
to the date of this report.

26. BANK BORROWING

et - shBERB—RABR2014F MR8
SEEEMAE1,914,0007T © — M
BRARER&EERFATRIIEY A
Wt o MEAETERBENGE M H®R
KPEH A AHE2,127,000 LB
EARGHERNREASNNDRTE -

26. SRITEE

2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Bank borrowing HRITIEE
Unsecured bank borrowing — carrying  RIEIRIRITEE — AR
amount repayable on demand and RERFERRAMBER
amount shown under current PIERENBENSRE
liabilities 1,778 -

The interest-bearing bank borrowing, which is repayable on
demand, are carried at amortised cost. Bank borrowing with
the amount of HK$1,111,000 is due for repayment after one
year which contain a repayment on demand clause (2016:
nil) and that is classified as current liabilities, and is expected
to be settled within one year. The Group’s bank borrowing is
repayable based on the scheduled repayment dates set out in
the loan agreement and ignore the effect of any repayment on
demand clause as follows:

AR BEREEN BIRITE IR
AR - &5 A5%1,111,0007TH)
BITERANR—FREE HBER
B EBIER(20164F : &) - BH
%ﬁ“*ﬁﬁ/@b@A C WIBHIR —F A
B o REBMRITERARERB
.:%%ﬁﬁ%k SEEHAEE  YTERE
TR ZEREHEEIERFENT
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26. BANK BORROWING (Continued)

26. IR1ITIEE®)

2017 2016

HK$'000 HK$'000

BT T BETT

Within 1 year —&R 667 -
Between 1 and 2 years —EMF 667 -
Between 2 and 5 years —EFhE 444 _
1,778 -

The bank borrowing was denominated in HK$ carrying
interest at variable-rate with an interest rate of 3-month
Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate (“HIBOR") plus 2.25%
per annum.

During the year ended 31 March 2017, the Group
obtained new borrowings of approximately
HK$12,000,000 (2016: HK$10,000,000). The proceeds
were used to finance the Group’s operation.

As at 31 March 2017, the Group’s general banking
facilities was secured by the pledged deposit disclosed in
note 32.

As at 31 March 2017, the undrawn borrowing facility
amount was approximately HK$27,222,000 (2016:
HK$11,000,000). The above bank borrowing was drawn
from new bank facility HK$18,000,000 obtained during
the year.

Annual Report 2016/17 Ff

BB FHEMRITIEER=EA
MEBRITREEFE ([ EBRIT
B4R ) IMNNFERF2.25%H
FEMEER -

HE2017F3A3MBIEFE
W AEBESHEENSE
12,000,000 7T ( 2016 FF : & &
10,000,0007T) ° FT{SFRIE A E
BREBZEERE o

BANKIFE32 T BR - F20174F3
A318 » REEN—RRITRE
TiAE IR TE ZR A -

M2017E3A31H » RIBEE
BERE 4 A7 127,222,000 T
(20164 : #%11,000,0007T) °
LHRITIE BRI B F N ERA
7 18,000,000 7T 2 #7 #R 17 @b
ﬁ °
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27. OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASES 27. MEHERE

2017 2016

HK$'000 HK$'000

BET T BETIT

Analysed for reporting purposes as: M EERDTT -

Current liabilities mEaE 11,279 16,353

Non-current liabilities ERBEE 5,512 12,974

16,791 29,327
It is the Group's policy to lease certain of its motor vehicles and AEENBEAREREBENRE
machineries under finance lease. The average lease term is 2-5 HEFRBEREW - THHEBR2E
years. The obligation under finance leases carried interest at 54 o AR EEEFEFREN
floating rates from 2.63% to 3.5% (2016: 2.63% to 5.25%) F2.63%%E3.5%(2016%F : 2.63% &
per annum, and at fixed rates from 1.18% to 3.75% (2016: 525% ) © LA 1.18 £3.75% (2016
1.18% to 2.25%) per annum. F 0 1.18%%2.25% ) WEF FFR5t

5 o
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27. OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASES

(Continued)

Minimum lease

27. MEHESEF @)

Present value of minimum

payments lease payments
BREREHEENRE BREMEHEERERE
2017 2016 2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T FEHET T BT T BT T
Amounts payable under MEHERN SR
finance leases
Within one year —FR 11,614 17,012 11,279 16,353
More than one year but less B —FETZRF
than two years 4,992 9,931 4,917 9,692
More than two years but less 3B FE LR AT
than five years 599 3,311 595 3,282
17,205 30,254 16,791 29,327
Less: future finance charges ~ J&l : AR TEE A (414) (927) N/A N/A
TEA i
Present value of obligations ~ BEHERFHRE
under finance lease 16,791 29,327
Less: amounts due for B BR—EFREER
settlement within 1 year H(GIEREN A
(==
(shown under current &)
liabilities) (11,279) (16,353)
Amounts due for settlement 7B —FEEERIE
after 1 year 5,512 12,974

As at 31 March 2017, certain plant and equipment with
carrying amounts of approximately HK$26,054,000 (2016:
HK$44,228,000) of subsidiaries and corporate guarantees
of the Company of not less than HK$10,000,000 (2016:

HK$10,000,000).
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MR2017F3A31H  WEB R AR
H B %) & & % 26,054,000 7T ( 2016
& B #44,228,0007T ) WE T E

BEEAQRTNEEERTIDOR
75 810,000,000 7T ( 2016 F @ B #&
10,000,0007T) °
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28. LONG SERVICE PAYMENT OBLIGATIONS

Under the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance, the Group
is obliged to make lump sum payments on cessation of
employment in certain circumstances to certain employees
who have completed at least five years of service with the
Group. The amount payable is dependent on the employees’
final salary and years of service, and is reduced by entitlements
accrued under the Group’s retirement plans that are
attributable to contributions made by the Group. The Group
does not set aside any assets to fund any remaining obligations.

Movement in the long service payment obligations is as follows:

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RR MR

28. REIRKE &
REESREGN  ~AEEAEET
BRTREIHERRAAEEZRE
LHERBEMETREIN—ER
B ENRERTRERENSEY
SRBRBEHME - LINHIRAEE
BB AEERKIENES
1o AEEY BIERTAEENAT
ABTETREES -

RERGSEENESHWT

2017 2016

HK$'000 HK$'000

BT T BT T

At 1 April M4R18 544 544
Credited to profit or loss FFAERE (271) -
Payments made during the year FAPTEL BRI (40) -
At 31 March M3HA31H 233 544

The provision represents the management’s best estimate of
the Group's liability at the end of the reporting period.

The value of the retirement benefits of the Group was
determined by the management’s best estimation.

BEREEENHREHRGAKEEA
B &ML

AEBMERKENEENEEEFD
MR EETMERTE °
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29. SHARE CAPITAL 29. R
Number of shares Share capital
RBEE S
2017 2016 2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000
BETT BT
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each BREES®0.01TH
Authorised ZE
At the beginning of the year RET] 1,560,000,000 38,000,000 15,600 380
Increase on 25 November 2015 72015811 525810
(Note a) (Hizta) - 1,522,000,000 - 15,220
At 31 March M3A31H 1,560,000,000 1,560,000,000 15,600 15,600
Issued and fully paid ERTRHE
At the beginning of the year RER] 500,000,000 1 5,000 -
Issued in consolidation for lEEARECEIRE
the acquisition of the issued MmeraEIT(M2b)
share capital of YH Investments
(Note b) - 99 - -
Issue of new shares in connection HAATRM L
with the listing of shares of BITHR (Hitc)
the Company (Note ¢) - 125,000,000 - 1,250
Capitalisation issue of shares (Note d) EAMEETTIIA (Hitd) - 374,999,900 - 3,750
At 31 March W3A31H 500,000,000 500,000,000 5,000 5,000
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29. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Notes:

(a)

(@)

(d)

On 25 November 2015, the authorised share capital of the Company
was increased from HK$380,000 to HK$15,600,000 by the creation
of an additional 1,522,000,000 new Shares of HK$0.01 each.

Pursuant to the Group reorganisation and as consideration for the
acquisition by the Company of the entire issued share capital of YH
Investments from YH Assets on 14 August 2015 in consideration
HK$1 of in aggregate of allotting and issuing 99 shares, all credited
as fully paid up, to YH Assets. The aggregate share capital of certain
subsidiaries and YH Investments with amounts HK$14,808,000 were
transferred to merger reserve after this transaction.

On 17 December 2015, the Company issued a total of 125,000,000
ordinary shares HK$0.01 each at a price of HK$1 per share as a
result of the completion of the placing. Of the total gross proceeds
amounting to HK$125,000,000, HK$1,250,000 representing the par
value credit to the Company’s share capital and HK$123,750,000,
before the share issue expenses, credit to the share premium account.
The Company’s total number of issued shares was increased to
500,000,000 shares upon completion of the share offer.

On 25 November 2015, pursuant to the resolution of the then
shareholders of the Company, it was approved to issue 374,999,900
ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each to the shareholders by way of
capitalisation of HK$3,749,999 from the share premium account
arose from the placing of 125,000,000 ordinary shares of the
Company. Such shares were issued on 17 December 2015.

29. IR ()

(a)

(b)

(d)

2015511 8258 » ARQRIEEER
7N iE i 5% ®8 40 1,522,000,000 A%
BREEBE00I TG - BB
380,000 18 = /5#15,600,0007T °

BEEBEARIEARRRN2015F8
A14HMAYH Assets UEEER B IRE R B
BITRANRB(REESLABME 17T
MYH Assetshit 8% [ 217994 2 H0 A BRI
EBRHED) - ETHBRARIRES
B M IR 4B (E S 14,808,000 TR 7%
RGEITREBE A OHHE -

R2015412 4178 » AR BIRAEE
ERMEERAEE I THERETE
+ 125,000,000 % & I% E & 75 % 0.01
TTHEBR - EMEHRBREAEK
125,000,000 7T & - & ¥ 1,250,000 7T
(FHEREME) T AKRDTRAN » &
123,750,000 7C (0 Bk B 19 85 77 B 2
B AFARMDBER - RIRHBEER
K&+ ARRBIEBITRGEEENE
500,000,000/% °

2015511 8258  IRIEARQRAEE
RIREURESR - AR R EHESBSR
& KA §125,000,000 % E @A E LK
% 17 V4 18 AR AP & 75 15 3,749,999 7T # 7%
BN - (A% R 17 374,999,900 f% &A%
EESB0ITTHE R - ZERMHE
2015612 A17BEST -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RR MR

30. COMMITMENTS
(a) Operating lease commitment

The Group as lessee

The Group leases its office properties, site offices, storage
area and machinery under operating lease arrangement.
Leases are negotiated for an original term of one to three
years. At the end of each reporting period, the Group had
future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases which fall due as follows:

30. &I
(a) EEEERE
KEBIEBEFN

AEERBEEHELHEER

WMREYE

HWERHAT

PR A B A - KRR IRTHE

FRE—ZE=F - NEEAREH
R AREREA A HEHEE
ST 52 HA R ) R SRR KR

e

GiE|

EfZMT
2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT
Within one year —&R 2,735 2,737
In the second to fifth years inclusive FIEFRF
(BREEREWSF) 1,899 1,329
4,634 4,066
(b) Others (b) Hftb
2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Capital commitments contracted for NGRS
but not provided in the consolidated BRBE R EAAEIE -
financial statements in respect of — W B 4 B8 Ko RR
acquisition of plant and equipment 4,974 -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RR MR

31. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 31. RAE
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had provided the RMERR - AEBELRATER :

following guarantees:

2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Guarantees in respect of performance BRIKFAEBEFLHNEL
bonds in favor of its clients IR IHFELR 96,679 69,636
In the opinion of the directors of the Company, it was not RARIEERAE  BREBEERALREE
probable that a claim would be made against the Group under REBERMAEETK R EZE
the guarantee; therefore, no provision for such guarantee was 2017 201653 A31 B It FE#Y4R
made in the consolidated financial statements for the years & BRI ER A BEREDEMA
ended 31 March 2017 and 2016. B -
32. PLEDGE OF ASSETS 32. EEEH
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had pledged RMERR - AEBBEAUTEE
the following assets to banks and other financial institution to FIRITRHEAM S EEE - AR TR
secure the banking and finance lease facilities and performance EENRITEMERERENRELD
bonds granted to the Group: REE S EHEIR -
2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Plant and equipment e 26,054 44,228
Deposits b 2,494 1,157
Bank deposits RITIER 2,038 2,032
30,586 47,417
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33. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS 33. LR AEBNZARS

Equity-settled share option schemes of the
Company

The Company’s share option scheme (the “Scheme”), was
adopted pursuant to a written resolution of the Company
passed on 25 November 2015 for the primary purpose of
providing incentives to directors and eligible employees,
and will expire on 24 November 2025. Under the Scheme,
the board of directors of the Company may grant options
to eligible employees, including directors of the Company
and its subsidiaries, to subscribe for shares in the Company.
Additionally, the Company may, from time to time, grant share
options to outside third parties for settlement in respect of
goods or services provided to the Company.

The total number of shares in respect of which options may
be granted under the Scheme is not permitted to exceed 10%
of the shares of the Company in issue at any point in time,
without prior approval from the Company’s shareholders. The
number of shares issued and to be issued in respect of which
options granted and may be granted to any individual in any
one year is not permitted to exceed 1% of the shares of the
Company in issue during any 12-month period, without prior
approval from the Company’s shareholders.

Options may be exercised at any time during a period as the
Board may determine which shall not exceed 10 years from the
offer date subject to the provisions of early termination thereof,
and provided that the Board may determine the minimum
period for which an option has to be held or other restrictions
before its exercise. The exercise price is determined by the
directors of the Company, and will not be less than the higher
of (i) the closing price of the Company’s shares on the date of
grant; (ii) the average closing price of the shares for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of grant; and (iii)
the nominal value of the Company’s share.

No share option has been granted since the Scheme has been
adopted. As at 31 March 2017, there are no outstanding share
options issued under the Scheme (2016: nil).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RR MR

34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 3. B AR B
(a) Save as disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial (a) BREFETBMERANEMM T HEE
statements, during the year, the Group entered into HHN  RNEERF AR R
transactions with related parties as follows: AN E
2017 2016
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT BT T
Related party Nature of transaction R ZM4H
)y
Pioneer National Rental expenses ek
Development Limited 984 909
HIEHEBRAA]
Celebright Limited Reimbursement expenses  fiEF - 99

B A AR AR
Chun Wai Cranes Limited ~ Rental and site expense & M8

(note i) 33 7,042
BEREER QB (M)

The above transaction was conducted at terms determined LR SRR EEREE S A E

on a basis mutually agreed between the Group and RIBREETETEIRIET - AR

the related parties. The directors of the Company have RIESEN LB T e B

beneficial interest in the above mentioned related parties. o

Note: Htat
Chun Wai Cranes Limited was owned by the son of a former i &1 B# AR AT B AR T E
shareholder and director of a subsidiary of the Company RNAZARRREE(HEB20155F
(who ceased to be a directors and a shareholder of the a 5A11H K20159F5A31HIED B
subsidiary of the Company since 11 May 2015 and 31 May THAEARAMNBRARIZESR
2015 respectively), whom was a connected person pursuant to IRER) 2 ZHA - ZAREK T
the Listing Rules Chapter 14A. Accordingly, Chun Wai Cranes BAIBAAETHBEEATLT - &
Limited ceased to be a connected person to the Company with It - B2016F5A 1B - &E
effect from 11 May 2016. AERARTERARRZH

BATL e
(b) Banking facilities (b) SRITHRLE

The directors of the Company has provided unlimited RAREER AN EEEERITH

personal guarantees and deposits of for the grant of BIRMHE EREAERRFR

banking facilities to the Group which was not utilised as at 20163 A31H @ RITREL

31 March 2016 and the banking facilities were cancelled AWM - BERN20169F5 A #

subsequently in May 2016. 8H o
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34.

35.

36.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(c) Compensation of key management personnel
The directors of the Company consider that they and
one employee are the key management personnel of the
Group. Other than remuneration paid to the directors of
the Company and debentures held for the benefits in kind
of the director of the Company as disclosed in notes 13
and 18, the Company paid significant compensation to
one key management personnel during the years ended
31 March 2017 and 2016, details of which are disclosed
in note 14.

MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS

The Group entered into finance lease arrangements in respect
of plant and equipment with a total capital value at the
inception of the leases of approximately HK$4,251,000 (2016:
HK$10,526,000).

RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLANS

Defined contribution plans

The Group operates a MPF Scheme for all qualifying employees
in Hong Kong. The assets of the schemes are held separately
from those of the Group, in funds under the control of trustees.
The Group contributes 5% of relevant payroll costs, capped
at HK$1,500 per month, for certain employees, to the MPF
Scheme, in which the contribution is matched by employees
and directors.

The total cost charged to consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income of approximately
HK$6,348,000 (2016: HK$6,362,000) for the year ended 31
March 2017. The payment represents contributions payable
to these schemes by the Group in respect of the current
accounting period.
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FERERS
REEpREEREBEILHERER
B REEREARBESREENER
#) B4 251,0007T (20164 « B
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EBIRERIGTE

RIEMRETE
AEEANEBHMEAERERRY
BEERE B EERALEEEAE
SHAFBE  AXTAESINESE
B o REBIREETEKAN5% (5
ETREEMES @ ERATABE1,500
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37. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF

THE COMPANY

37. AR BB BRI R

2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT TT

Non-current asset FRBEE
Investment in a subsidiary R BRRIRE 14,808 14,808

Current assets REEE
Prepayments TEfI5RIE 259 280
Amounts due from subsidiaries &P 8 B FR IR 111,872 110,840
Tax recoverable U IE 137 -
Bank balances and cash IRITEHR IS 81 1,390
112,349 112,510
Current liabilities RBAE

Other payables and accruals EAb BRI R EET &R 315 363
Tax payable FERTLIE = 121
315 484
Net current assets REBEEFE 112,034 112,026
Net assets EEFE 126,842 126,834

Capital and reserve EAXRHE
Share capital &N 5,000 5,000
Reserves (note a) fEE(Kita) 121,842 121,834
Total equity R 126,842 126,834
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37. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF
THE COMPANY (Continued)

37. XA T ME AR TR (@)

Note: Wist -
(@) Movements in reserves (a) FHEE
Share Merger Accumulated
premium reserve losses Total
RAHE aotEE RitE5iE Bat
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT BT BT
As at 1 April 2015 M2015F4 818 - - - -
Loss and total FAEERIRERAXZ

comprehensive plakas)

expense for the year - - (5,557) (5,557)
Reorganisation B - 14,808 - 14,808
Issue of new shares in BARE LW

connection with the BATHIR D

listing of the Company (H17229())

(Note 29(c)) 123,750 - - 123,750
Share issue expenses IRt B1TR (7,417) - - (7,417)
Capitalisation issue BARLBITRG

of shares (Note 29(d)) (Hi:129(d)) (3,750) - - (3,750)
As at 1 April 2016 and HR2016F4A18 &

31 March 2016 201643 H31H 112,583 14,808 (5,557) 121,834
Profit and total F N M R AR A WS

comprehensive FkE]

income for the year - - 8 8
As at 31 March 2017 R201743H31H 112,583 14,808 (5,549) 121,842
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38. M A &
M2017%F K%201656F3H31H + AR
MEARIEHIT

38. SUBSIDIARIES
Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries as at 31 March 2017
and 2016 are as follows:

Place of Issued and fully Percentage of equity
incorporation/ Place of paid share capital/ interest/voting power
Name of subsidiaries establishment operation registered capital attributable to the Company Principal activities
e/ BRARARRE/
WEAEAN R ey ifEx ADREERE/ RARAA IEER
2017 2016 2017 2016
Direct Indirect Direct Indirect
ER BE ER BB
YH Investments The British Virgin HongKong  Ordinary shares  Ordinary shares 100% - 100% - Investment holding
slands (the "BVI") US$1,000 US$1,000
FoRE ZERNEE B EEl LBl REHR
(RBRLEE]) 1,000%7 1,0005%7C
YH Engineering Holdings ~~ The B HongKong  Ordinary shares  Ordinary shares - 100% - 100% Investment holding
Limited US§1,000 US$1,000
RBRIES B LRk LRk RER
1,000%7 1,000%7
YH Construction The BVI HongKong ~ Ordinaryshares  Ordinary shares - 100% - 100%  Investment holding
Holdings Limited US$1,000 US$1,000
EBRIEE Bk Lk Lk RESR
100057 1,000%7
YH Foundations The BVI HongKong  Ordinary shares  Ordinary shares - 100% - 100% Investment holding
Holdings Limited U5$1,000 U5$1,000
ABRAES B ERRI000KT  ERR1000ET REHR
Yee Hop Engineering - Hong Kong HongKong ~ Ordinary shares  Ordinary shares - 100% - 100% Engineering and
HK$14,800,001  HK$65,800,001 construction
5818 & B LaREY EEREY TRREE
14,8000017T  65,800,0017
Yee Hop Construction Hong Kong HongKong ~ Ordinary shares  Ordinary shares - 100% - 100% Construction contracting
HK$1,000 HK$1,000
ey 2 (3 Bk ERREY ERRER 2 0]
1,000 1,000
Y H. Foundations Hong Kong HongKong  Ordinary shares  Ordinary shares - 100% - 100% Engineering and
HK$1,000 HK$1,000 construction
EoiE (3 B ERRAEY LRk TRRRE
1,0007C 1,000
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38. SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 38. B & ()
Place of Issued and fully Percentage of equity
incorporation/ Place of paid share capital/ interest/voting power
Name of subsidiaries establishment operation registered capital attributable to the Company Principal activities
e/ BRARAERE/
HELTER MBS Eenk s ALREHRE/ RARRAL IERR
2017 2016 2017 2016

Direct Indirect Direct Indirect

ER B ER @R

YH Inv Holdings Limited ~~ The BV HongKong  Ordinary shares NA - 100% - NA Ivestment holding
US§1,000
ZERUNE (30 £, 000%7 AER TR RAZRK
YH Investments Limited Hong Kong HongKong  Ordinary shares NA - 100% - NA Property development
HK$1,000
FoRERRAN 30 (30 ERREY AER TER NEERE
1,000
YH Machinery Holdings ~~~ The BV HongKong  Ordinary shares NA - 100% - NA Ivestment holding
Limited U5$1,000
RERAAE B £, 000%7 i TR REZRK
YH Machinery Limited Hong Kong HongKong  Ordinary shares NA - 100% - NA Plantand Machinery
HK$1,000 holdings
FRERARLT 30 (30 ERREY AER R Rk
1,000
None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities outstanding IR HA K s A IR HA N (L] RS RS -
as at the end of the reporting period or at any time during the BELOMBRARBSEEMAERE
reporting period. FEEE o
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39. CHANGES IN OWNERSHIP INTEREST IN 39. B AR ZHEAEERE B
SUBSIDIARIES
For the year ended 31 March 2016, the Group has the HE2016F3A831HIEFEE - TH|K
following changes in its ownership interest in a subsidiary that EER—HWNB AR B EERE
do not result in a loss of control. B N EBURKIEHIE -
Acquisition of additional interest in a subsidiary Wi — R A Bl 2 B S =R
On 11 May 2015, the Group acquired an additional 11.6% R2015F 58118 - AEEFEINKE
issued shares of Y.H. Foundations, increasing its ownership EAHEN6%EHITRG - KEE
interest to 100%. Cash consideration of HK$116 was paid to EREERIZEE100% - HEREEE
the non-controlling shareholder. The carrying value of the net M6 B X FIFERAR - BEME
assets of Y.H. Foundations was approximately HK$816,000. A R B EREER RB%816,0007T °
schedule of the effect of acquisition of additional interest is as BRANIEEI MERS 2 L EWRAT -
follows:
2016
HK$'000
BT T
Carrying amount of non-controlling interest acquired & 43 IE1EAE %S 2 BRIEIE 816
Consideration paid for acquisition of additional MU EESHEFEIMERENRE

interest in Y.H. Foundations -

Difference recognised in other reserve within equity gz HMFHEER 2 =58 816
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40. EVENT AFTER REPORTING PERIOD 40. SREHIEREE

Pursuant to the announcement on 12 April 2017, a wholly-
owned subsidiary of Company, Yee Hop Investments, entered
into a memorandum of understanding (the “MOU") with
an independent third party to explore the opportunity of co-
operation to establish or co-invest in a jointly owned company
(the “Target Company”) for investment and development of
land and properties in the United Kingdom.

Under the MOU, it is currently proposed that the Target
Company will be owned beneficially as to 60% by Yee Hop
Investments and as to 40% by an independent third party.
Pursuant to the terms of the MOU, the maximum capital
contribution to the Target Group is set as GBP16,560,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$160,300,000). The wholly-
owned subsidiary of Company and the independent third
party will contribute according to their respective percentage
of equity interest in the Target Company. It is expected that
the Group’s capital contribution to the Target Group will be
financed by internal resources and/or other external financing.

Up to the date of these financial statements, no legally binding
agreement had been entered into and no capital was injected
into the Target Company.
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Five Year Financial Summary

T FEHBEHE

The summary of the consolidated results of the Group for each of
the three years ended 31 March 2013, 2014 and 2015 and of the
consolidated assets and liabilities of the Company as at 31 March
2013, 2014 and 2015 has been extracted from the Prospectus.

AREBEZ2013F ~ 20149 5201593 A
BTAE=EAFESFHNImE FEMEEARA
20134 ~ 20144 20153 A31 B4R
AEERBENEZEREEBRER -

CONSOLIDATED RESULTS mEXEE
For the year ended 31 March HE3IANALFE
2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETL BETT BETL BETT
Revenue Wiz 498,278 704,393 577,333 404,371 320,991
Cost of services PRAER (419,821) (530,887) (415,259) (332,920) (260,390)
Gross profit £ 78,457 173,506 162,074 71,451 60,601
Other income and gain Ethl A R 2,526 3413 6,594 3,566 5,648
Administrative expenses TBREY (52,504) (62,247) (60,700) (44,071) (38,169)
Finance costs BEKK (1,601) (1,603) (1,767) (2,042) (1,515)
Profit before taxation Nt 26,378 113,069 106,201 28,904 26,565
Income tax expense FEMEY (4,344) (18,803) (19,555) (4,723) (4,405)
Profit and total ERFHREZELA
comprehensive income a%
for the year 22,534 94,266 86,646 24,181 22,160
CONSOLIDATED ASSETS AND LIABILITIES SCoEENERE
As at 31 March H3A31H
2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BEETL BB BT BET T
Non-current assets ERSEE 56,358 71443 82,920 87,002 62,406
Current assets FEEE 276,533 310,801 266,210 203,155 103,675
Current liabilities AR (73,460) (136,755) (183,617) (158,555) (62,799)
Net current assets THEERE 203,073 174,046 82,593 44,600 40,876
Total assets less current liabilities BEBEHRDER 259,431 245,489 165,513 131,602 103,282
Non-current liabilities ERBEE (12,595) (21,187) (25,868) (40,803) (36,664)
Net assets BEFE 246,836 224,302 139,645 90,799 66,618
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Glossary
AR

In this annual report (other than the Independent Auditor’s Report
and Financial Information), unless the context otherwise requires,
the following expression shall have the following meanings:

“2017 Financial Year”

“2016 Corresponding
Year”

“AGM"

“Articles”

“Board”
“BVI”
“CG Code”

“Company”

“connected person(s)”
“Controlling

Shareholder(s)”

"Directors”
“Group”
" H K$ "

“Hong Kong” or “HK"”

“Independent Third
Party(ies)”

“JJ1318"

“Listing”

Annual Report 2016/17 Ff

for the year ended 31 March 2017

for the year ended 31 March 2016

Annual general meeting of the Company

the Articles of Association of the
Company, as amended from time to time

the board of Directors of the Company
the British Virgin Islands
the Corporate Governance Code

Yee Hop Holdings Limited, an exempted
company incorporated in Cayman Islands
with limited liability, the shares of which
are listed on the Stock Exchange

has the meaning ascribed to it under the
Listing Rules

has the meaning ascribed thereto under
the Listing Rules and, in the context of
the Company, means each of Mr. Jim,
Mr. Chui, JJ1318, MM1318 and YH
Assets

the director(s) of the Company
the Company and its subsidiaries

Hong Kong dollars, the lawful currency
of Hong Kong”

the Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region of the PRC

individual(s) or a company(ies) who is (or
are) independent of and not a connected
person or connected persons (within the
meaning of the Listing Rules) with any
Directors, Chief Executive or Substantial
Shareholders (within the meaning under
the Listing Rules) of our Company, any of
its subsidiaries or any of their respective
associates

JJ1318 Holdings Limited, a company
incorporated in the BVI, is wholly
owned by Mr. Jim and is a Controlling
Shareholder

the listing of the Shares on the Main
Board on 18 December 2015
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Glossary
HRAAR

“Listing Rules”

“Main Board”

“"MM1318”

“Model Code”
“Mr. Chui”

“Mr. Jim"”

“Mr. Pang”

"Prospectus”

“SFO"
“Shares”

“Share Option Scheme

“Shares Offer”

“Shareholder(s)"”

“Stock Exchange”

“Yee Hop Engineering”

“YH Assets”

“Y H. Foundations”

"

the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange

the main board of the Stock Exchange

MM1318 Holdings Limited, a company
incorporated in the BVI, is wholly
owned by Mr. Chui and is a Controlling
Shareholder

Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers

Mr. CHUI Mo Ming (R EVBA), an Executive
Director and a Controlling Shareholder

Mr. JIM Yin Kwan Jackin(E#&), an
Executive Director and a Controlling
Shareholder

Mr. Pang Wai (8212), an ex-shareholder and
ex-director of Y.H. Foundations

the prospectus in relation to the Shares
Offer of the Company dated 8 December
2015

Securities and Futures Ordinance
(Chapter 571 of the laws of Hong Kong)

Shares issued by the Company, with a
nominal value of HK$0.01 each

the share option scheme adopted by
the Company pursuant to the written
resolutions of the Shareholders of the
Company passed on 25 November 2015

the public offer and placing of totaling
125,000,000 new Shares of the
Company at the offer price of HK$1.00
under the Prospectus

holder(s) of the Shares of the Company
from time to time

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited

Yee Hop Engineering Limited (&4 Li2H
FR2R]), a company incorporated in Hong
Kong with limited liability and an indirect
subsidiary of the Company

Yee Hop Assets Limited, a company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands
and a Controlling Shareholder

Y.H. Foundations Limited (F&& hEGRR
/A7]), a company incorporated in Hong Kong
with limited liability and an indirect
subsidiary of the Company
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